
090122



Roberts Realty Investors Inc owns and manages residential housing

as self-administered equity real estate investment trust Roberts is

recognized leader with long and successful history of developing

constructing and managing residential housing Our business plan

and investment strategy remain focused on simple clear and

conservative philosophy. create cash flow and capital appreciation

by developing and owning residential housing of the highest quality

and value in excellent high-growth neighborhoods

2008 2007 Change

Operating Revenues 2600000 2455000 5.9%

Net Operating Income 1333000 1253000 6.4%

Net Income Loss 17621000 3411000 N/A

Net Income Loss per Share 1.81 0.35 N/A

Distributions per
Share2 2.22 0.00 N/A

TotalAssets atcost $113358000 $127451000 11.1%

Weighted Average

Number of Shares

and Units Outstanding 12494486 12503062 0.1%

Footnotes

On page 73 of ehis Annual Repore we explain how we calculate Net Operating Income and why we believe

ieprovides useful information to investors

On August 2008 we paid special distribution of$0 66per share in cash On December 18 2008

our board of directors declared special distribution of $1.56 per share which we paid on January29 2009

in combination of$0.31 per share in cash and$1.25 per
share in common stock



TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS
Not since the Great Depression has there been greater period

of economic turmoil than the year our nation lived through and

endured in 2008 The collapse of key financial institutions triggered

an unprecedented freeze of the credit markets The Federal Reserve

and the Treasury were forced to take historic measures to stabilize the

financial system by injecting billions of dollars into banks and other

financial companies

The resulting fear and unavailability of credit caused significant

drop in the stock market and pushed the American economy into

deep recession Companies cut their budgets which led to record

unemployment and decreasing consumer spending While 2008 was

year most of us would like to forget the opposite is likely the case It

will instead be remembered as the most trying economic time that we

have faced in our lifetime

ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN 2008

Despite these unprecedented challenges and economic pressures we still had

accomplishments in 2008 We completed timely sale of our Addison Place apartment

community for $60 million in June 2008 that produced $28 million gain The

property sold at premium in very weak market primarily due to its location design

and quality of construction together with its 97% occupancy rate This sale enabled us

to make cash distribution of $7.4 million or $0.97 per share to our shareholders while

increasing our cash reserves and reducing our short-term debt You received $0.66 of

this cash distribution in August 2008 and the remaining $0.31 in January 2009

During this credit crisis where financing was virtually nonexistent we refinanced six

loans totaling $30.5 million at competitive rates and terms We also extended their

maturity dates twelve to eighteen months Our ability to accomplish this task was

testament to our long-term banking relationships along with the quality and location of

our real estate assets
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STOCK PRICE
VS REAL ESTATE VALUES

The market has punished stocks over the past

year and our company was no exception In

January 2008 our stock traded at $7.53 and in

January 2009 our stock traded at $1.06 after

accounting for the additional shares issued

through our stock dividend As we have stated

throughout the companys history at times our

stock price has not reflected the value of the

companys real estate assets Our track record

speaks for itself over the past thirteen years we

have sold apartment communities at premium

prices resulting in the distribution of $9.81 per

share to our shareholders

As the companys largest
shareholder more than

anyone would like the stock price to be higher and

reflect the true value of our real estate assets The

fact is we have $0.88 per share in cash and believe

we have another $1.60 per share in just two of

our land parcels Northridge and North Springs

We believe we have additional value in our four

remaining land investments which are zoned for

982 residential units and our five commercial

properties In the past we have realized the

maximum value for our real estate through

individual property sales and distributions to

our shareholders and we expect this to continue in

the future

SELLING RETAIL CENTERS
TO FOCUS ON APARTMENTS

After developing and constructing our Charlotte

apartment community Ballantyne Place we sold

it for $37.9 million in June 2005 The resulting

sales proceeds were used to purchase the Bassett

Spectrum and Grand Pavilion shopping centers for

$24.2 million in October 2005 with the remaining

proceeds used to acquire three parcels
of land to

complete our tax deferred exchange The sale was

structured as tax deferred exchange to avoid the

immediate payment of substantial federal and state

income taxes

At the time retail centers were producing solid

investment returns while apartment communities

were extremely expensive and in the Boards

opinion overpriced We viewed the retail centers

as parking place for our investment dollars

until they could be reinvested into apartment

communities with
greater

investment potential
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Unfortunately the retail sector has taken the brunt

of this severe recession and our retail centers have

struggled with occupancy as tenants have continued

to fail under the duress of this economy The risk

profile of owning retail centers has dramatically

increased and we anticipate retail continuing to be

weak performer As result we are committed

to increasing the occupancy of our retail centers to

position them for sale

While our internal
leasing

efforts have achieved

some success we think the most effective course

of action is to hire outside brokerage firms whose

specialty and sole responsibility will be leasing and

marketing our retail centers This will enable us

to focus our time on what we do best developing

constructing managing and
selling high-quality

new apartment communities allowing us to make

distributions to our shareholders

THE FUTURE OF OUR BUSINESS

We are very confident about the future outlook

for the apartment business particularly in our

market areas There will be an increasing demand

for high quality rental housing based on changing

demographics positive immigration trends and

tighter lending standards leading to lower home

ownership In addition there are barriers to entry

caused by lack of zoned land which will limit the

number of new apartments being constructed

The Baby Boomer generation has previously

been the largest demographic group with the most

influence on our industry McKinsey Company

predicts
that in the next five years Baby Boomers

will account for almost 60% of U.S Wealth and

40% of its spending The McKinsey report also

indicates that this aging group will increasingly

crave lower maintenance and lower cost living

environment which they will seek to achieve

through renting versus buying

The Echo Boom population are the children of

the post-World War II Baby Boomers and they are

now entering their peak renting ages
of 25 44

According to study by the Harvard University

Joint Center for Housing Studies there are million

more Echo Boomers than the record number of

Baby Boomers in the 1970s The Executive Director

of the Joint Center observed This is powerful

powerful underpinning of future demand

We believe the convergence of these two

demographic groups together with decrease in

home ownership due to tighter lending standards

will continue to drive demand for high-quality

new rental housing At the same time the supply

of new apartment communities will be limited by

stringent lending requirements and scarcity of

zoned apartment land With an increase in demand

from new renters and constrained supply of new

apartment communities the apartment business

has excellent fundamentals for tomorrow

Economists predict that current government

spending will cause increased inflation rising

interest rates and higher taxes leading to slower

growth in the economy These economic factors

will be further catalysts for strong apartment
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demand Based on the positive economic and

demographic trends forecasted for the apartment

business we believe our new apartment communities

will be excellent investments that create increased

value for our shareholders

NEW COMMUNITIES..
FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES

Since 1970 we have consistently developed land

investments into award winning cash flowing

profitable new apartment
communities Owning

zoned land ready for construction has positioned

our company to profitably meet the growing rental

demands of tomorrow would like to review with

you our land investments and where we are in the

design and development process for each of these

new communities

Sawmill Village We have refined our architectural

drawings and site plans for the Sawmill Village

community and as result it will now be the first of

our land investments to commence construction

The 22-acre site in Cumming will have 154 homes

in 26 buildings Each building is comprised of

units and will look and feel like large single-family

home We have filed for our building permits and

are seeking construction financing

Northridge We purchased the land disturbance

permit and received our entitlements for

Northridge in November 2008 The site has

been cleared and is ready to be graded This

220 home community will be our second land

investment to commence construction These one

and two bedroom homes will have covered parking

and provide convenient access to all the major

employment centers with its location at the GA

400 and Northridge interchange

Peachtree Parkway We are completing the civil

engineering for the Peachtree Parkway community

This 23.5-acre site is located in Peachtree Corners

and will become 292 home community directly

across the street from The Forum 580000 square

foot lifestyle shopping center The Forum provides

very exclusive upscale shopping experience with

numerous restaurants and other amenities that will

appeal to our residents

Highway 20 We have started the land planning

and design work for this 210 home community in

Cumming The property is located on Highway

20 at Elm Street which is also home to Central

Forsyth High School new middle school and

an elementary school This property is situated

at high elevation with creek that flows around

the property that will provide great
views and

natural areas for the residents to enjoy and use as

an amenity

North Springs We have purchased our land

disturbance permit and continued to grade the

property and install the utilities at very competitive

prices North Springs is located across the street

from the North Springs MARTA station on

Peachtree Dunwoody Road in Perimeter Center

This mixed-use development is zoned for 356

residential units 210000 square feet of office space

and 56000 square feet of retail space
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STRATEGICALLY POSITIONED
FOR TOMORROW
Even with the financial turmoil of the past year and half our business plan has proven

to be sound The good news for our company is real estate financing and investment has

returned to basic fundamentals where trust character track record equity and the quality

and location of the collateral are once again paramount Our banks recognize and appreciate

that our company has always exhibited these essential conservative traits Therefore we will

continue to be prudent with our cash lease our retail centers and market them for sale while

developing our land investments into profitable new residential communities

would like to thank each shareholder for your continued confidence in our company and

assure you that we realize the most important obligation we have is to maximize the value

of
your investment Going forward we recognize there is lot to accomplish in this difficult

operating environment and we are determined to continue working hard on your behalf in

order to achieve all of our goals

Finally let me give special thanks to our Board of Directors attorneys accountants bankers

and employees for their wisdom and support through these difficult economic times Our

annual meeting will be held at 1000 A.M on September 29 2009 at the Crowne Plaza

Ravinia in Atlanta and look forward to seeing you there
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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These statements relate

to future economic performance plans and objectives of management for future operations and

projections of revenues and other financial items that are based on the beliefs of our management as well

as assumptions made by and information currently available to our management The words expect

estimate anticipate believe and similar expressions are intended to identif forward-looking

statements We make forward-looking statements in Items 1A and of this report Some of the

forward-looking statements relate to our intent belief or expectations regarding our strategies and plans

including development and construction of new multifamily apartment communities and the possible sale

of properties and the ways we may finance our future development and construction activities Other

forward-looking statements relate to the loan extensions we expect to obtain from Wachovia Bank N.A
trends affecting our financial condition and results of operations our anticipated capital needs and

expenditures and how we may address these needs These statements involve risks uncertainties and

assumptions including industry and economic conditions competition and other factors discussed in this

and our other filings with the SEC These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future

performance and involve risks and uncertainties and actual results may differ materially from those that

are anticipated in the forward-looking statements See Item 1A Risk Factors for description of some of

the important factors that may affect actual outcomes

For these forward-looking statements we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-

looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 You should not

place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date of this report

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our

behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this

section We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements

whether as result of new information future events or otherwise



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

Roberts Realty Investors Inc is Georgia corporation formed in 1994 to own and operate

multifamily residential retail and office properties as self-administered self-managed equity real estate

investment trust or REIT We expect to continue to qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes

REIT is legal entity that holds real estate interests and through its payment of distributions is able to

reduce or avoid incurring federal income tax at the corporate level This structure allows shareholders to

participate in real estate investments without the double taxation of income i.e at both the corporate

and shareholder levels that generally results from an investment in shares of corporation To maintain

our qualification as REIT we must among other things distribute annually to our shareholders at least

90% of our taxable income

We enter into contractual commitments in the normal course of business with Roberts Properties

Inc Roberts Properties and Roberts Properties Construction Inc Roberts Construction together

referred to as the Roberts Companies Mr Charles Roberts the President Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Board of Roberts Realty owns all of the outstanding stock of the Roberts

Companies The contracts between Roberts Realty and the Roberts Companies relate to the development

and construction of real estate assets and from time to time the acquisition of real estate

We own and manage four neighborhood retail centers one office building and six tracts of

undeveloped land all of which are located in Georgia Until June 24 2008 we also owned the 403-unit

Addison Place apartment community We currently have four reportable operating segments

the multifamily segment consists of the Addison Place apartment community which was

sold on June 24 2008 and is reflected as discontinued operations

the retail/office segment consists of four operating retail centers and one office building

the land segment consists of six tracts of undeveloped land totaling 148.4 acres that are

either under development and construction or held for investment and

the corporate segment consists primarily of operating cash and cash equivalents plus

miscellaneous other assets

For more detailed information about these segments please see Note Segment Reporting in the audited

consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this report For information about our properties

please see Item Properties below

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE Alternext US formerly the American Stock Exchange
under the symbol RPI Our executive offices are located at 450 Northridge Parkway Suite 302 Sandy

Springs Georgia 30350 and our telephone number is 770 394-6000 We do not maintain corporate

website As of March 23 2009 we have five full-time employees

The Operating Partnership

We conduct our business through Roberts Properties Residential L.P which we refer to as the

operating partnership The operating partnership owns all of our properties directly or indirectly through

wholly owned subsidiaries As of March 23 2009 Roberts Realty owns 1.1% interest in the operating

partnership and is its sole general partner We expect to continue to conduct our business in this



organizational structure which is sometimes called an umbrella partnership or UPREIT Our

ownership interest in the operating partnership entitles us to share in cash distributions from and in the

profits and losses of the operating partnership generally in proportion to our ownership percentage In

this report we refer to units of limited partnership interest in the operating partnership as units and the

holders of units as unitholders The holders of units include Mr Charles Roberts our Chairman of

the Board and Chief Executive Officer and President and the former limited partners in the limited

partnerships that were merged into the operating partnership between 1994 and 1996

Unitholders generally have the right to require the operating partnership to redeem their units

unitholder who submits units for redemption will receive at our election either 1.647 shares for each

unit submitted for redemption or cash for those units at their fair market value based upon the then

current trading price of the shares We have adopted policy of issuing shares in exchange for units We

also have the right at our election to issue shares in exchange for all outstanding units Our articles of

incorporation limit ownership by any one holder to 3.7% of the outstanding shares of our common stock

with two exceptions First Mr Roberts can beneficially own up to 35% of the outstanding shares

Second any shareholder who beneficially owned more than 3.7% of our outstanding common shares on

July 22 2004 the date that we filed an amendment to our articles of incorporation revising the ownership

limits can retain indefinitely the shares the shareholder owned as of that date but cannot increase that

ownership in the future That shareholder can also exchange any units in the operating partnership he

owned on that date for shares of common stock Otherwise unitholders cannot redeem their units if

doing so would cause the number of shares they own to exceed those ownership limits Shares issued for

units are registered with the SEC and are freely transferable other than by affiliates

Whenever we issue shares we are obligated to contribute the net proceeds from that issuance to

the operating partnership and the operating partnership is obligated to issue the same number of units to

us The operating partnership agreement permits the operating partnership without the consent of the

unitholders to sell additional units and add limited partners The operating partnership has not issued

additional units or added limited partners since it completed the mergers of various limited partnerships

into the operating partnership in 1996

Recent Developments

Sale ofAddison Place in June 2008

On June 24 2008 we sold our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community for $60000000 to an

unrelated buyer The sale resulted in gain on sale of $28348000 Net cash proceeds at closing totaled

$29654952 from which we paid cash distribution to our shareholders and unitholders on August 2008

equal to $0.66 per share/unit or $5005586 in total On January 29 2009 we made an additional cash

distribution equal to $0.31 per share/unit or $2362909 in total to our shareholders and unitholders from

these sales proceeds as described below

Loan Renewals in Third Quarter of2008

During the quarter ended September 30 2008 we renewed four loans totaling $18245000 and

extended the maturities to various dates during 2010 as well as reduced the principal amount of the four

loans by total of $1552000

Special Distribution Declared in December 2008 and Paid in Januaiy 2009

On December 18 2008 our board of directors declared special distribution of $9058000 or

$1.56 per share On January 29 2009 we made to shareholders of record at the close of business on



December 29 2008 distribution in combination of 20% in cash or $0.31 per share $1811819 in

total and 80% in our common stock equal to $1.25 per share 3754732 shares in total valued at an

aggregate amount of $7246633 Unitholders received $0.31 per share in cash $551090 in total and

are now entitled to receive 1.647 shares for each unit submitted for conversion We decided to pay 80%
of the distributions to shareholders in common stock to preserve our cash during this extraordinary credit

crunch

Trends and Outlook

Short-Term Loans Maturing in April 2009

We have two loans from Wachovia Bank N.A that mature on April 30 2009 These two loans

total $12252000 the $8175000 loan secured by our Peachtree Parkway land and the $4077000 loan

secured by our Highway 20 land We intend to refinance these loans with the same lender or with another

lender or lenders We may be required to pay down the loans in connection with refinancing and to

fund any such payment we may use cash from one or more of the following sources our existing cash
contributions of joint venture partner net proceeds from the sale of another property or equity we raise

in private offering If we are unable to refinance these loans in some manner or to reach agreement with

the lender to extend these loans the lender could foreclose on our Peachtree Parkway Highway 20 and

North Springs properties which would have material adverse financial and business consequences for us

In that event we could be forced to dispose of all or substantial portion of our properties in highly

unfavorable circumstances

On March 19 2009 we entered into loan commitment letter with local bank to provide $3.5

million loan to refinance the Highway 20 land subject to customary closing conditions Consistent with

our business plan to lower the amount of debt on our balance sheet at closing we would reduce the debt

secured by our Highway 20 land by $577000 The loan would mature on or about October 31 2010

Continued Negative Cash Flow

We own six tracts of undeveloped land totaling 148.4 acres Five of these tracts Peachtree

Parkway Westside Highway 20 Sawmill Village and North Springs which we cany on our balance

sheet at combined value of $53623000 are currently encumbered with land loans totaling

$21252000 Our Northridge land is the only one of our six tracts of undeveloped land that is not

encumbered with land loan Because undeveloped land does not generate revenue the majority of our

negative cash flow is due to the carrying costs interest expense and property taxes on our undeveloped
land In addition the financial performance of our four neighborhood retail centers and office building

continue to be challenged by the weakness in the national and local economy Therefore for these

reasons as well as the absence of the operating cash flow we previously received from our Addison Place

apartment community we expect to continue to generate negative operating cash flow and to operate at

loss for the foreseeable future

Although we believe we have excellent well-located assets significant amount of our assets

consists of undeveloped land that is generating negative cash flow due to carrying costs as noted above

Our business plan to reduce our negative cash flow includes the following

converting land loans to construction loans on two of our properties given that construction loans

fund interest out of draws on the loans

developing and constructing new apartment communities on the land we own as described

below with the expectation that we will begin to generate positive cash flow as we construct the

communities and begin to lease them up



increasing occupancy and rental rates of our retail and office properties and

selling one or more assets

We may sell one or more assets to independent purchasers or to Roberts Properties or an affiliate

of Roberts Properties and we are considering forming joint ventures and raising equity privately We

would use all or substantial portions of the equity contribution of our joint venture partner or of the

equity we raise privately to pay down our debt We are in discussions with possible joint venture

participants such as life insurance companies hedge funds foreign investors and local investors as well

as Roberts Properties

Although this strategy will not completely eliminate our negative cash flow we believe that it

should put us in stronger position as we pursue our development/construction activities We are moving

forward with the development and construction of our next two apartment communities Northridge and

Sawmill Village

Despite the very challenging economic conditions we believe this is good time to create

multifamily assets and our banks have told us that they will consider making construction loans for that

purpose Because of the rapid slowdown in the economy we believe we can build at lower construction

cost than in the recent past We have created value for our shareholders in the past by building when

construction costs were lower generally during economic downturns or recessions We believe that any

capital we need to fund the construction of new multifamily property in addition to construction loan

and our cash on hand would come from the proceeds of sale of another property the contributions of

joint venture partner or equity we raise privately As of March 23 2009 we have no outstanding balance

on our $2.5 million line of credit which matures on September 2009

We have not paid regular quarterly dividends since the third quarter of 2001 and we have no

plans to resume paying regular quarterly dividends in the foreseeable future We will make distributions

however to the extent required to maintain our status as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Business Plan

Overview With the rapid weakening of the U.S economy we are taking more cautious

approach with our business plan and growth strategy Real estate is going through de-leveraging

process and the credit crisis is making it difficult for us to move forward with our development plans

Our goals in 2009 are to lower the amount of debt on our balance sheet significantly reduce our negative

cash flow and move forward with the development and construction of our next two apartment

communities Northridge and Sawmill Village

Property Management Strategy We believe that efficiently managing our existing operating real

estate assets is fundamental element of our investment strategy Our property management strategy has

traditionally been to deliver quality services thereby promoting tenant satisfaction maintaining high

tenant retention and enhancing the value of each of our operating real estate assets The key elements of

our property management strategy include

increasing occupancy and rental rates as market conditions permit

minimizing tenant turnover and delinquent rental payments

providing our tenants with attractive facilities

controlling operating expenses and increasing net operating income at each of our retail and

office properties and

providing superior customer service to our tenants



Development and Construction Strategy We intend to continue to develop high quality

multifamily residential communities as economic and financial market conditions permit Toward this

goal we will continue to engage Roberts Properties and Roberts Construction to perform development

and construction services for the operating partnership During the past 21 years the Roberts Companies
have developed constructed and/or managed substantial number of multifamily residential units We
expect that affiliates of Mr Roberts will continue to develop and construct properties for us and we have

entered into agreements for those services as described in Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions We may also hire other development or construction companies as we have done in the

past in Atlanta and elsewhere if we deem it to be in our best interests to do so We have engaged the

Roberts Companies to develop and construct the five properties we have under development

We believe the number and quality of the multifamily residential units developed by the Roberts

Companies the relationships Mr Roberts and employees of the Roberts Companies have developed with

local permitting and governmental authorities and the Roberts Companies experience with the

development construction and financing process will minimize the barriers to new development These

barriers include governmental growth control difficult rezoning and permitting process and the limited

availability of well-located sites We believe these restraints on construction offer continuing

opportunity for us to achieve favorable returns on the development of well-located high quality

multifamily residential communities

In analyzing the potential development of particular project we evaluate the geographic

demographic economic and financial data including

households population and employment growth

prevailing rental and occupancy rates in the immediate market area and the perceived

potential for growth in those rates

costs that affect profitability of the investment including construction financing operating

and maintenance costs

income levels in the area

existing employment bases

traffic volume transportation access proximity to commercial centers and regional malls

and

proximity to and quality of the areas schools

We also consider physical elements regarding particular site including the probability of zoning

approval if required the availability of utilities and infrastructure and other physical characteristics of

the site

Determination of Investment Financing and Conflict of Interest Policies

Our board of directors sets our investment policies financing policies and conflict of interest

policies these policies are summarized below Our board may amend or revise them from time to time

without vote of our shareholders or any vote of the partners of the operating partnership except that

we cannot change our policy of holding our assets and conducting our business exclusively

through the operating partnership without amending the operating partnership agreement

which will generally require the consent of the holders of majority in interest of the limited

partners in the operating partnership including if applicable Roberts Realty and



any changes in our conflicts of interest policies must be approved by majority of the

independent directors and otherwise be consistent with legal requirements

Investment Policies

Investments in Real Estate or Interests in Real Estate We conduct all of our investment activities

through the operating partnership and will continue to do so as long as the operating partnership exists

The agreement of limited partnership of the operating partnership provides that it is not required to be

dissolved until 2093 Our investment objectives are to achieve stable cash flow and over time to

increase cash flow and portfolio value by continuing to develop multifamily residential communities

Our policy is to develop real estate projects where we believe favorable investment opportunities

exist based on market conditions at the time of the investment We expect to pursue our investment

objectives primarily through the direct ownership of properties by the operating partnership although as

discussed below we may also pursue indirect property ownership opportunities Our governing

documents do not limit our future development or investment activities to any geographic area product

type or specified percentage of our assets

Possible Acquisition of Properties from Mr Roberts or His Affiliates Mr Roberts and Roberts

Properties have been engaged in the development of residential and commercial real estate since 1970

and Mr Roberts expects that he and Roberts Properties will continue to engage in multifamily residential

and commercial real estate development Provided that any transaction or agreement complies with the

policies discussed under Conflict of Interest Policies below we may engage in transactions of various

types with Mr Roberts the Roberts Companies and/or other affiliates of Mr Roberts to develop or

acquire real estate Those transactions may include the following

we may hire Mr Roberts or the Roberts Companies to develop and construct real estate assets

under fee arrangement

we may acquire undeveloped property from Mr Roberts or his affiliates for future

development or

we may acquire from Mr Roberts or his affiliates partially or completely constructed

properties whether in their lease-up phase or already leased and stabilized

We have no current plans to acquire either undeveloped property or partially or completely constructed

properties from Mr Roberts or his affiliates All agreements with Mr Roberts or the Roberts Companies

to develop and construct real estate assets are described elsewhere in this report

An affiliate of Mr Roberts owns land adjacent to our Sawmill Village development project Mr

Roberts intends to develop this land in conjunction with the development of the overall project We may

enter into management agreement with Mr Roberts for management of the assets to be constructed and

owned by Mr Roberts assuming we are in compliance with all RETT rules and requirements

Securities of or Interest in Persons Primarily Engaged in Real Estate Activities and Other

Issuers The operating partnership or we may invest in securities of other entities engaged in real estate

activities or invest in securities of other issuers including investments by us and the operating partnership

for the purpose of exercising control over those entities The operating partnership or we may acquire all

or substantially all of the securities or assets of other REITs or similar entities where those investments

would be consistent with our investment policies We currently have no plans to invest in the securities

of other issuers In making any of the investments described in this paragraph we would comply with the



percentage of ownership limitations and gross income tests necessary for REIT qualification under the

Internal Revenue Code We will not make any investments if the proposed investment would cause the

operating partnership or us to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940

No Investments in Mortgages We do not own any mortgages and we do not intend to invest in

mortgages or to engage in the originating servicing or warehousing of mortgages

Financing Policies

Our organizational documents do not limit the amount of indebtedness we may incur We have

an informal policy that we will not incur indebtedness in excess of 75% of what the board of directors

believes is the aggregate fair market value of our assets at any given time We may however from time

to time re-evaluate our borrowing policies in light of then current economic conditions relative costs of

debt and equity capital market value of the operating partnerships real estate assets growth and

acquisition opportunities and other factors Modification of this policy may adversely affect the interests

of our shareholders

To the extent that the board of directors determines the need to seek additional capital we may
raise capital through additional equity offerings debt financing asset sales or retention of cash flow or

combination of these methods Our retention of cash flow is subject to provisions in the Internal Revenue
Code requiring REIT to distribute specified percentage of taxable income and we must also take into

account taxes that would be imposed on undistributed taxable income As long as the operating

partnership is in existence we will contribute the net proceeds of all equity capital we raise to the

operating partnership in exchange for units or other interests in the operating partnership

We have not established any limit on the number or amount of mortgages on any single property
or on the operating partnerships portfolio as whole

Conflict of Interest Policies

The board of directors is subject to provisions of Georgia law that are designed to eliminate or

minimize potential conflicts of interest We can give no assurances that these policies will always

eliminate the influence of those conflicts If these policies are not successful the board could make
decisions that might fail to reflect fully the interests of all shareholders

Under Georgia law director may not misappropriate corporate opportunities that he learns of

solely by serving as member of the board of directors In addition under Georgia law transaction

effected by us or any entity we control including the operating partnership in which director or

specified related persons and entities of the director have conflicting interest of such financial

significance that it would reasonably be expected to exert an influence on the directors judgment may not

be enjoined set aside or give rise to damages on the grounds of that interest if either

the transaction is approved after disclosure of the interest by the affirmative vote of

majority of the disinterested directors or by the affirmative vote of majority of the votes

cast by disinterested shareholders or

the transaction is established to have been fair to us

Our board of directors has adopted policy that all conflicting interest transactions must be authorized by
majority of the disinterested directors but only if there are at least two directors who are disinterested

with respect to the matter at issue In addition under the applicable rules of the NYSE Alternext US



related party transactions are subject to appropriate
review and oversight by the audit committee of our

board of directors

Other Policies

The operating partnership and we have the authority to offer our securities and to repurchase and

otherwise reacquire our securities and we may engage in those activities in the future We have adopted

policy that we will issue shares to unitholders who exercise their rights of redemption In the future we

may make loans to joint ventures in which we participate to meet working capital needs We have not

engaged in trading underwriting agency distribution or sale of securities of other issuers and we do not

intend to do so We intend to continue to make investments in manner so that we will not be treated as

an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940

Under our stock repurchase program as of March 23 2009 we are authorized us to repurchase

up to 585882 shares of our outstanding common stock Under the plan we may repurchase shares from

time to time by means of open market purchases and in solicited and unsolicited privately negotiated

transactions depending on availability our cash position and price

At all times we intend to make investments in manner to be consistent with the requirements of

the Internal Revenue Code for us to continue to qualify as REIT unless because of changing

circumstances or changes in the Internal Revenue Code or in applicable regulations our board of directors

decides that it is no longer in our best interests to qualify as REIT In that event we would be required

under our articles of incorporation to obtain the consent of the holders of majority of the outstanding

shares of our common stock

Competition

The tracts of land on which we are developing new multifamily communities are located in

developed areas that include other apartment communities The number of competitive multifamily

communities in particular area could have material adverse effect on our ability to lease apartment

homes at any newly developed or acquired community as well as on our rental rates We face

competition from other real estate investors including insurance companies pension and investment

funds partnerships and investment companies and other apartment REITs to acquire and develop

apartment communities and acquire land for future development As an owner of apartment communities

we face competition for prospective residents from other apartment owners whose communities may be

perceived to offer better location or better amenities or whose rent may be perceived as better value

given the quality location and amenities that the prospective resident seeks In addition despite the

adverse conditions in the single-family housing market we may lose both current and prospective

residents who see the current market as an opportunity to buy single-family home at reduced price

financed at an attractive interest rate

Our four neighborhood retail centers and office building face competition from similar retail

centers and office buildings within their geographic areas to lease new space renew leases or re-lease

spaces as leases expire In addition the current economic slowdown may force prospective retail and

office tenants to curtail expansion plans and existing tenants may be forced to close their businesses or

file bankruptcy Other properties that compete with ours may be newer better located better capitalized

or have better tenants than our properties Any new competitive properties that are developed within our

local markets may result in increased competition for customer traffic and creditworthy tenants by way of

lower rental rates or more attractive lease terms especially in this weak economic environment We may

not be able to lease our properties renew leases or obtain new tenants to whom space may be re-leased as

leases expire and the terms of renewals or new leases including the cost of required renovations or

10



concessions to tenants may be less favorable to us than current lease terms Increased competition for

tenants may require us to make capital improvements to properties that we would not have otherwise

planned to make In addition our retail centers face competition from alternate forms of retailing

including home shopping networks mail order catalogues and on-line based shopping services which

may limit the number of retail tenants that desire to seek space in shopping centers generally

Environmental and Other Regulatory Matters

Under various federal state and local laws and regulations an owner of real estate is liable for

the costs of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances on the property Those laws often

impose liability without regard to whether the owner knew of or was responsible for the presence of the

hazardous or toxic substances The costs of remediation or removal of the substances may be substantial

and the presence of the substances or the failure to remediate the substances promptly may adversely

affect the owners ability to sell the real estate or to borrow using the real estate as collateral In

connection with the ownership and operation of our operating properties and other real estate assets we

may be potentially liable for the following

remediation and removal costs and

damages to persons or property arising from the existence or maintenance of hazardous or

toxic substances

The preliminary environmental assessments of our operating and other properties have not

revealed any environmental liability that we believe would have material adverse effect on our business

assets or results of operations nor are we aware of any liability of that type Nevertheless these

assessments may not have revealed all environmental liabilities and we may have material environmental

liabilities that we do not know about Future uses or conditions including changes in applicable

environmental laws and regulations may cause us to have environmental liability

Insurance

We carry comprehensive property general liability fire extended coverage environmental and

rental loss insurance on all of our existing properties with policy specifications insured limits and

deductibles customarily carried for similar properties We carry similar insurance with respect to our

properties under development or properties under construction but with appropriate exceptions given the

nature of these properties

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 was enacted on November 26 2002 and was

subsequently extended through December 31 2014 by the enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insurance

Program Reauthorization Act of 2007 on December 26 2007 The law provides that losses resulting from

certified acts of terrorism will be partially reimbursed by the United States after statutory deductible

amount is paid by the insurance company providing coverage The law also requires that the insurance

company offer coverage for terrorist acts for an additional premium We accepted the offer to include this

coverage in our property and casualty policies

We believe that our properties are adequately covered by insurance Some types of losses such

as losses arising from acts of war are not generally insured because they are either uninsurable or not

economically insurable If an uninsured loss or loss in excess of insured limits occurs we could lose

our capital invested in property as well as the anticipated future revenues from the property and we
would continue to be obligated on any mortgage indebtedness or other obligations related to the property

Any loss of that kind would adversely affect our operations and financial position
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ITEM RISK FACTORS

Investors or potential investors in Roberts Realty should carefully consider the risks described

below These risks are not the only ones we face Additional risks of which we are presently unaware or

that we currently consider immaterial may also impair our business operations and hinder our financial

performance including our ability to make distributions to our investors We have organized our

summary of these risks into five subsections

financing risks

real estate related risks

tax risks

environmental and other legal risks and

risks for investors in our stock

This section includes forward-looking statements

Financing Risks

We face the maturity of our short-term debt on April 30 2009 and we may be unable to refinance

or extend this debt

We have two loans totaling $12252000 that mature on April 30 2009 Three of our properties

held for development secure these loans On March 19 2009 we entered into loan commitment letter

from local bank to provide $3.5 million loan to refinance the $4077000 in debt secured by our

Highway 20 land subject to customary closing conditions At closing we would reduce the debt secured

by the land by $577000 The loan would mature on or about October 31 2010

If we are unable to refinance or extend these loans at maturity on acceptable terms or at all we

will either have to use substantial portion of our remaining $13145000 in cash to repay the debt in full

or dispose of one or more of our properties on disadvantageous terms which might result in losses to us

Those losses could have materially adverse effect on our ability to pay amounts due on our debt and to

pay distributions to our investors Further if we are unable to meet mortgage payments on any

mortgaged property the mortgage holder could foreclose upon the property appoint receiver and

receive an assignment of rents and leases or pursue other remedies all with consequent loss of our

revenues and asset value Foreclosures could also create taxable income without accompanying cash

proceeds thereby hindering our ability to meet the REIT distribution requirements of the Internal

Revenue Code

We may not be able to obtain the debt and equity we need to carry out our planned development

and construction program

To start construction of apartment communities on our Peachtree Parkway Northridge Sawmill

Village and Highway 20 properties we will need substantial additional amount of capital We believe

that any capital we need to fund the construction of new multifamily property in addition to

construction loan would come from the proceeds of sale of another property the contributions of joint

venture partner or equity we raise privately We are not able to provide any assurance that we will be

able to raise the debt and equity needed to complete the construction of even one new multifamily

community as we expect If we are unable to obtain debt and equity on favorable terms we will be

unable to carry
out our planned development and construction program and our returns to investors will

be reduced accordingly
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Rising interest rates could materially and adversely affect the cost of our indebtedness

We have incurred and may again in the future incur debt that bears interest at variable rate As

of March 23 2009 we have $30390334 in debt that bears interest at floating interest rate

Accordingly increases in interest rates would increase our interest costs which could materially and

adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to pay amounts due on our debt and distributions

to our investors

We face the normal risks associated with debt financing

We are subject to the normal risks associated with debt financing including

the risk that our cash flow will be insufficient to meet required payments of principal and

interest and

the risk that we will not be able to renew repay or refinance our debt when it matures or

that the terms of any renewal or refinancing will not be as favorable as the existing terms

of that debt

The payment terms contained in each mortgage note secured by one of our properties do not fully

amortize the loan balance and balloon payment of the balance will be due upon its maturity If we are

unable to pay our obligations to our secured lenders they could proceed against any or all of the collateral

securing our indebtedness to them In addition breach of the restrictions or covenants contained in our

loan documents could cause an acceleration of our indebtedness We may not have or be able to obtain

sufficient funds to repay our indebtedness in full upon acceleration If we are unable to refinance our debt

upon acceleration or at scheduled maturity on acceptable terms or at all we face the risks described in the

first risk factor above

Increased debt and leverage could affect our financial position and impair our ability to make
distributions to our investors

Our organizational documents do not limit the amount of debt that we may incur We have an

informal policy that we will not incur indebtedness in excess of 75% of what the board of directors

believes is the fair market value of our assets at any given time In the future however we may re
evaluate our borrowing policies in light of then current economic conditions relative costs of debt and

equity capital market value of our real estate assets growth and acquisition opportunities and other

factors Modification of this policy may adversely affect the interests of our shareholders Additional

leverage may

increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions

limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and the REIT

industry which may place us at competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that

have less debt and

limit along with the possible financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness

our ability to borrow additional funds

Any of the foregoing could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to pay

amounts due on our debt and distributions to our investors
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We could be negatively affected by the condition of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are major source of financing for secured multifamily rental real

estate We and other multifamily companies depend heavily on Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to finance

growth by purchasing apartment loans In September 2008 the U.S government assumed control of

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and placed both companies into government conservatorship under the

recently created Federal Housing Finance Agency The U.S government has not determined which of

Fannie Maes and Freddie Macs businesses to retain and which to dissolve decision by the

government to reduce Fannie Maes or Freddie Macs acquisitions of apartment loans could adversely

affect interest rates capital availability and the development of multifamily communities Governmental

actions could also make it easier for individuals to finance loans for single-family homes which would

make renting less attractive option and adversely affect our occupancy or rental rates

If we hedge our fixed-rate debt our hedging activities may not effectively protect us from

fluctuations in interest rates

We generally enter into fixed rate debt instruments for our completed apartment communities In

certain situations we may in the future use derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate

swaps to hedge interest rate exposure on variable-rate debt We do not use these instruments for trading

or speculative purposes but rather to increase the predictability of our financing costs If the pricing of

new debt instruments is not within the parameters of particular interest rate hedging contract the

contract is ineffective Contracts may also be ineffective when market interest rates produce lower

interest cost than we incur under the hedging contracts Furthermore the settlement of interest rate

hedging contracts has involved and may in the future involve material charges These charges are

typically related to the extent and timing of fluctuations in interest rates Despite our efforts to minimize

our exposure to interest rate fluctuations we cannot guarantee that we will maintain coverage for all of

our outstanding indebtedness at any particular time If we do not effectively protect ourselves from this

risk we may be subject to increased interest costs resulting from interest rate fluctuations We currently

do not have any outstanding derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to hedge

interest rate exposure on our variable rate debt

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds or of money market fund in which we

invest our funds could cause the loss of portion of our cash

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds or of money market fund in which we

invest our funds could reduce the amount of cash we have available for our corporate and business

purposes described elsewhere in this report We have diversified our cash and cash equivalents among

several banking institutions and money market funds in an attempt to minimize exposure to any one of

these entities or funds However the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or FDIC only insures

amounts up to $250000 per depositor per insured bank and our money market funds are or may be

uninsured We currently have cash and cash equivalents deposited in certain financial institutions in

excess of federally insured levels and in money market funds that are or may be uninsured If any of the

banking institutions in which we have deposited funds ultimately fails we may lose our bank deposits

over $250000 and we may be unable to access our money market funds when we need them and may

suffer loss when we do access them The loss of our deposits could reduce the amount of cash we have

available for our corporate and business purposes and could result in financial loss
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Real Estate Related Risks

Our business currently operates at loss

Between 2003 and 2008 we sold nine apartment communities for total of $261078000 From

the net proceeds of these sales we have paid cash distributions totaling $45571334 or $6.02 per

share/unit to our shareholders and unitholders as well as stock dividends of $4693415 or $1.25 per

share to shareholders We currently do not have any apartment communities in our portfolio As

result we have experienced and continue to experience negative operating cash flow Because

undeveloped land does not generate revenue the majority of our negative cash flow is due to the carrying

costs interest expense and property taxes on our undeveloped land We expect the financial

performance of our four neighborhood retail centers and office building to continue to be challenged by
the current weakness in the national and local economy As result we expect to continue to operate at

loss for the foreseeable future and our cash position will continue to be adversely affected unless we
successfully implement the strategies to reduce our negative cash flow described in Item Business

Trends above

Real estate properties are illiquid and may be difficult to sell particularly in poor market
environment like the present

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid which limits our ability to react quickly to adverse

changes in economic or other market conditions Our ability to dispose of assets in the future will depend

ii on prevailing economic and market conditions The current credit crunch may make it particularly

difficult to sell our properties because interested buyers may be unable to obtain the financing they need
We hold land and may in the future acquire additional land in our development pipeline at cost we may
not be able to recover fully or on which we cannot build and develop into profitable multifamily

community We may be unable to sell our properties when we would prefer to do so to .raise capital we
need to fund our planned development and construction program or to fund distributions to investors

Construction risks inherent in the development and construction of new properties could negatively
affect our financial performance

Development and construction costs may exceed our original estimates due to events beyond our

control including

increased costs for or any unavailability of materials or labor

building restrictions

hi environmental impact studies by the government
51 weather delays

increased interest costs due to rising interest rates and
ac

any financial instability of the developer Roberts Properties Inc general contractor
5L

Roberts Properties Construction Inc or any subcontractor

We may also be unable to complete development or construction of property on schedule

which could result in increased debt service expense or construction costs and loss of rents until the

property is ready for occupancy Additionally the time required to recoup our development and
an

construction costs and to realize return if any on such costs can be long Further we typically enter
pr

into construction contracts on cost plus basis Because these contracts do not provide for guaranteedoc
maximum price we must bear the entire amount of any increase in costs above the amounts we initially

estimate and these costs may be material
no
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We face leasing risks in our planned development and construction program

The success of real estate development project depends in part on leasing space to residents or

tenants with acceptable terms within the lease-up period If the residential apartment homes retail or

office space we have constructed is not leased on schedule and on the expected terms and conditions the

yields returns and value creation on the project could be adversely affected Whether or not residents

and commercial tenants are willing to enter into leases on the terms and conditions we project and on the

timetable we expect will depend on large variety of factors many of which are outside our control

We are currently concentrated in metropolitan Atlanta and adverse changes in economic or

market conditions in Atlanta could negatively affect our financial performance and condition

Currently all our properties are located in metropolitan Atlanta Georgia and economic

conditions in this area could adversely affect our performance These factors include but are not limited

to the following

increasing unemployment or the failure of the employment rate to rebound to prior levels

neighborhood values in the submarkets in which our properties are located

zoning and other regulatory conditions

competition from other properties

property taxes

weather problems and

price increases for materials or labor

Deteriorating general economic or social conditions or any natural disasters in the metropolitan

Atlanta area could materially and adversely affect the value of our portfolio our results of operations and

our ability to pay amounts due on our debt and distributions to our investors

We face conflicts of interest because of our business dealings with our Chief Executive Officer and

his affiliates

Our business practice is to retain Roberts Properties to develop our properties and Roberts

Construction to construct our properties Mr Charles Roberts our President Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of our Board of Directors owns all of the equity interests in these two companies We
have in the past and may again in the future acquire properties from Mr Roberts or his affiliates One of

our goals for 2009 is to sell one or more properties to decrease our negative cash flow and we may sell

one or more properties to Roberts Properties or an affiliate of Roberts Properties Although each

agreement between Roberts Realty or the operating partnership on one hand and Roberts Properties or its

affiliates on the other hand must be approved by our audit committee and the independent members of our

board of directors conflicts of interest inherent in these business transactions could result in our paying

more for property or services than we would pay an independent seller or provider or receiving less than

we would receive from an independent buyer These agreements and transactions have not had and will

not have the benefit of arm s-length negotiation of the type normally conducted between unrelated

parties These arrangements also expose us to the following risks among others

the possibility that the Roberts Companies might incur severe financial problems or even

become bankrupt

the possibility that the Roberts Companies may at any time have economic or business

interests or goals that are or that become inconsistent with our business interests or goals or

16



the possibility that the Roberts Companies may be in position to take action
contrary to our

instructions or requests or contrary to our policies or objectives

Further Mr Roberts may face conflicts of interest in dealing with lenders who have made loans both to

us and to private entities he owns or controls

We face substantial competition

All of our properties are located in developed areas where we face substantial competition from

other properties and from other real estate companies that own or may develop or renovate competing

properties The substantial number of competitive properties and real estate companies in our market

areas could have material adverse effect on our ability to maintain and increase occupancy levels and

rental rates and to attract creditworthy residents and commercial tenants As result these factors could

materially and adversely affect the value of our real estate portfolio our results of operations our ability
to pay amounts due on our mortgage debt and our ability to pay distributions to our investors

The ability of our potential residents to buy single-family homes at depressed prices could adversely
affect our revenues from the apartment communities we develop and construct

Our apartment communities have historically competed with numerous housing alternatives in

attracting residents including other apartment communities single-family rental homes as well as owner
occupied single-family homes The affordability of owner occupied single-family homes caused by low

mortgage interest rates and historically high foreclosure rates may adversely affect our ability to retain

our residents lease apartment homes and increase or maintain rental rates We expect the desire and

ability of prospective residents to purchase single-family home to continue to be substantial

competitive risk

Changes in market or economic conditions may affect our business negatively

General economic conditions and other factors beyond our control may adversely affect real

property income and capital appreciation The current economic climate punctuated by slumping

housing market and rapid tightening of available credit leaves us vulnerable to adverse conditions beyond
our control and has resulted in weak real estate market in metropolitan Atlanta

Terrorism could impair our business

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war could have material adverse effect on our
business and operating results Attacks that directly affect one or more of our properties could

significantly affect our ability to operate those properties and impair our ability to achieve the results we
expect Our insurance coverage may not cover any losses caused by terrorist attack In addition the

adverse effects that such violent acts and threats of future attacks could have on the U.S economy could

similarly have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations

Our retail and office tenants may go bankrupt or be unable to make lease payments

Our operating revenues from our retail and office properties depend on entering into leases with
and collecting rents from tenants Economic conditions may adversely affect existing tenants as well as

prospective tenants in our market and accordingly could affect their ability to pay rents and possibly to

occupy their space Tenants may be forced to file for bankruptcy protection and the bankruptcy court

may reject those leases or terminate them If leases expire and are not renewed replacement tenants may
not be available under the same terms and conditions as the previous tenant In addition if market rental
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rates are lower than the previous contractual rates our revenues and cash flows could be adversely

affected As result if significant number of our retail or office tenants fail to pay their rent due to

bankruptcy weakened financial condition or otherwise it would negatively
affect our financial

performance and cash flow

Losses from natural catastrophes may exceed our insurance coverage

We carry comprehensive liability fire flood extended coverage and rental loss insurance on our

properties which we believe is customary in amount and type for real property assets We intend to

obtain similar coverage for properties acquired in the future Some losses of catastrophic nature such

as losses from floods or high winds may be subject to limitations We may not be able to maintain our

insurance at reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against potential losses Further our

insurance costs could increase in future periods If we suffer substantial loss our insurance coverage

may not be sufficient to pay the full current market value or current replacement value of the lost

investment Inflation changes in building codes and ordinances environmental considerations and other

factors also might make it impractical to use insurance proceeds to replace damaged or destroyed

property

Our business depends on key personnel

Our success depends on our ability to aifract and retain the services of executive officers and key

personnel We face substantial competition for qualified personnel in the real estate industry and the loss

of our key personnel particularly Mr Roberts could have an adverse effect on us We do not carry key

person insurance on any of our executive officers or other key employees

If we are unable to increase our occupancy and rental rates at our retail and office properties the

performance of those properties will continue to suffer

Our retail and office properties are not fully leased and occupied If we are unable to lease the

remaining vacant space of our properties as we intend our financial performance will continue to suffer

Tax Risks

Our company may fail to qualify for RUT status under federal income tax laws

Our qualification as REIT for federal income tax purposes depends upon our ability to meet on

continuing basis through actual annual operating results distribution levels and diversity of stock

ownership various qualification tests and organizational requirements for REITs under the Internal

Revenue Code We believe that we have qualified for taxation as REIT for federal income tax purposes

since our inception in 1994 and we plan to continue to meet the requirements to qualiFy as REIT in the

future Many of these requirements however are highly technical and complex We cannot guarantee

therefore that we have qualified or will continue to qualify in the future as REIT The determination

that we qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes requires an analysis of various factual matters

that may not be totally within our control Even technical or inadvertent mistake could jeopardize our

REIT status Furthermore Congress and the IRS might make changes to the tax laws and regulations

and the courts might issue new decisions that make it more difficult or impossible for us to remain

qualified as REIT

If we fail to qualify for taxation as REIT in any taxable year and certain relief provisions of the

Internal Revenue Code did not apply we would be subject to tax including any applicable alternative

minimum tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates leaving less money available for
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distributions to investors In addition distributions to shareholders or unitholders in any year in which we
failed to qualify would not be deductible for federal income tax purposes Failing to qualify as REIT
would eliminate our requirement to make distributions to shareholders or unitholders as well We would
be disqualified from taxation as REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we
ceased to qualify as REIT unless we were entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions It is not

possible to predict whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to such
statutory relief Our failure

to qualify as REIT likely would have significant adverse effect on the value of our common stock

Our operating partnership may fail to be treated as partnership for federal income tax purposes

Management believes that our operating partnership qualifies and has qualified since its

formation in 1994 as partnership for federal income tax purposes and not as publicly traded

partnership taxable as corporation We can provide no assurance however that the IRS will not

challenge the treatment of the operating partnership as partnership for federal income tax purposes or

that court would not sustain such challenge If the IRS were successful in treating the operating

partnership as corporation for federal income tax purposes then the taxable income of the operating

partnership would be taxable at regular corporate income tax rates In addition the treatment of the

operating partnership as corporation would cause us to fail to qualify as REIT

Environmental and Other Legal Risks

We may have liability under environmental laws

Under federal state and local environmental laws ordinances and regulations we may be

required to investigate and clean up the effects of releases of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum

products at our properties regardless of our knowledge or responsibility simply because of our current or

past ownership or operation of the real estate Therefore we may have liability with respect to properties

we have already sold If environmental problems arise we may have to take extensive measures to

remedy the problems which could adversely affect our cash flow and our ability to pay distributions to

our investors because

we may have to pay for property damage and for investigation and clean-up costs incurred in

connection with the contamination

the law typically imposes clean-up responsibility and liability regardless of whether the

owner or operator knew of or caused the contamination

even if more than one person may be responsible for the contamination each person who
shares legal liability under the environmental laws may be held responsible for all of the

clean-up costs and

governmental entities or other third parties may sue the owner or operator of contaminated

site for damages and costs

These costs could be substantial and in extreme cases could exceed the value of the contaminated

property The presence of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum products and the failure to

remediate that contamination properly may materially and adversely affect our ability to borrow against

sell or lease an affected property In addition applicable environmental laws create liens on

contaminated sites in favor of the government for damages and costs it incurs in connection with

contamination
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We face risks related to mold

Recently there has been an increasing number of lawsuits against owners and managers of

properties alleging personal injury and property damage caused by the presence of mold in real estate

Some of these lawsuits have resulted in substantial monetary judgments or settlements Although our

insurance policy currently does not exclude mold-related claims we cannot provide any assurance that we

will be able to obtain coverage in the future for mold-related claims at commercially reasonable price or

at all The presence of significant mold could expose us to liability to residents tenants and others if

allegations regarding property damage health concerns or similar claims arise

We may acquire properties that are subject to liabilities for which we have no recourse or only

limited recourse against the seller

These liabilities can include

claims by tenants vendors or other persons dealing with the former owners of the properties

liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business and

claims for indemnification by directors officers and others indemnified by the former

owners of the properties

If we have to expend time and money to deal with these claims our business could be materially and

adversely affected

We face risks in complying with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively

prevent fraud If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud we could be subject to

regulatory action or other litigation and our operating results could be harmed Beginning with our fiscal

year ending December 31 2007 we were required to document and test our internal control procedures to

satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxicy Act of 2002 which requires our

management to assess annually the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

Beginning with our 2009 fiscal year our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to

issue an attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting

During the course of our testing we may identify deficiencies that we may not be able to

remediate in timely manner In addition if we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal accounting

controls as those standards are modified supplemented or amended from time to time we may not be

able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over

financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 Failure to achieve and maintain an effective internal

control environment could cause us to face regulatory action and also cause investors to lose confidence

in our reported
financial information either of which could have an adverse effect on our stock price

Failure to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act or other similar laws could result in

substantial costs

number of federal state and local laws and regulations including the Americans with

Disabilities Act may require modifications to existing buildings or restrict certain renovations by

requiring improved access to such buildings by disabled persons and may require other structural features

that add to the cost of buildings under construction Legislation or regulations adopted in the future may

impose further burdens or restrictions on us with respect to improved access by disabled persons The

costs of compliance with these laws and regulations may be substantial and restrictions on construction
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or completion of renovations may limit implementation of our investment strategy in certain instances or

reduce overall returns on our investments which could have material adverse effect on us and our

ability to pay distributions to investors and to pay our mortgage debt as required

Risks for Investors in Our Stock

We do not pay regular quarterly dividends and we do not anticipate making distributions to

investors for the indefinite future other than possibly to preserve our REIT status if so required

Unlike other REITs that pay regular quarterly dividends we have not paid quarterly dividend

since the third quarter of 2001 and we presently have no plans to resume paying regular quarterly

dividends Since 2001 we have paid distributions only from the net cash proceeds of property sales In

light of our negative cash flow from operations we will pay distributions only from the net cash

proceeds of property sale or if we need to do so to maintain our status as REIT for federal income

tax purposes

The market price of our stock is subject to fluctuation as result of our operating results the

operating results of other REITs and changes in the stock market in general

The daily trading volume of our common stock on the NYSE Alternext US has historically been

relatively light and the market price may not reflect the fair market value of our common stock or our

net asset value at any particular moment Prior sales data do not necessarily indicate the prices at which

our common stock would trade in more active market The market value of our common stock may or

may not reflect the markets perception of our operating results the potential for growth in the value of

our properties as we develop and construct residential communities the potential for future cash

dividends from property sales and the real estate market value of our underlying assets In addition

general market conditions or market conditions of real estate companies in general could adversely affect

the value of our common stock

Additional issuances of equity securities may dilute the investment of our current shareholders

Issuing additional equity securities to finance future developments and acquisitions instead of

incurring additional debt could dilute the interests of our existing shareholders Our ability to execute our

business plan depends on our access to an appropriate blend of debt financing which could include line

of credit and other forms of secured and unsecured debt equity financing or joint ventures

Restrictions on changes of control could prevent beneficial takeover for investors

number of the provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws have or may have the

effect of deterring takeover of the company In particular to qualify as REIT for federal income tax

purposes we must comply with various requirements and avoid various prohibited events company
cannot be REIT if during the last half of taxable year more than 50% in value of its outstanding stock

is owned by five or fewer individual shareholders taking into account certain constructive ownership

tests To help the company comply with that test our articles of incorporation provide in substance that

Mr Roberts cai-mot own more than 35% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and no
other person can own more than 3.7% of our outstanding common stock These provisions which are

intended to limit the ownership of our common stock by five persons to no more than 49.8% of our

outstanding shares have or may have the effect of deterring takeover of the company

In addition our articles of incorporation and bylaws have other provisions that have or may have

the effect of deterring takeover of the company including
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our classified board of directors which may render more difficult change in control of the

company or removal of incumbent management because the term of office of only one-third

of the directors expires in given year

the ability of our board of directors to issue preferred stock

provisions in the articles of incorporation to the effect that no transaction of fundamental

nature including mergers in which the company is not the survivor share exchanges

consolidations or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the company may be

effectuated without the affirmative vote of at least three-quarters of the votes entitled to vote

generally in any such matter

provisions in the articles of incorporation to the effect that they may not be amended except

for certain limited matters without the affirmative vote of at least three-quarters of the votes

entitled to be voted generally in the election of directors

provisions in the bylaws to the effect that they may be amended by either the affirmative vote

of three-quarters of all shares outstanding and entitled to vote generally in the election of the

directors or the affirmative vote of majority of the companys directors then holding office

unless the shareholders prescribed that any such bylaw may not be amended or repealed by

the board of directors

Georgia anti-takeover statutes under which the company may elect to be protected and

provisions to the effect that directors elected by the holders of common stock may be

removed only by the affirmative vote of shareholders holding at least 75% of all of the votes

entitled to be cast for the election of directors

redemption of units is taxable

Holders of units in our operating partnership should keep in mind that redemption of units will

be treated as sale of units for federal income tax purposes The exchanging holder will generally

recognize gain in an amount equal to the value of the common shares plus the amount of liabilities of the

operating partnership allocable to the units being redeemed less the holders tax basis in the units It is

possible that the amount of gain recognized or the resulting tax liability could exceed the value of the

shares received in the redemption

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable
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ITEM PROPERTIES

General

We own the following properties all of which are located in north metropolitan Atlanta Georgia

The occupancy percentages shown for each property are as of March 23 2009

Retail/Office

Grand Pavilion 62323 square foot retail center located in Johns Creek that is 8.8%

occupied

Bassett Shopping Center 19949 square foot retail center located directly across from

the Mall of Georgia in Gwinnett County that is 100% occupied

Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia 30050 square foot retail center located directly across

from the Mall of Georgia in Gwinnett County that is 56.8% occupied

Addison Place Shops 44293-square-foot retail center located at the entrance to our

Addison Place apartment community in Johns Creek that is 31.1% occupied

Northridge Office Building 37864 square foot building located in Sandy Springs We

occupy portion of the third floor of the building as our corporate headquarters and we
have entered into leases for the remaining space on the third floor with Roberts Properties

and Roberts Construction each of which is owned by Mr Charles Roberts our

President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors In addition

we have signed leases with two unrelated companies for portions of the first and second

floors The building is 59.0% occupied

Land

Properties Held for Development and Construction

Northridge 10.9-acre site located adjacent to our Northridge office building in Sandy

Springs that is zoned for mixed-use that includes zoning for 220 apartments

Peachtree Parkway 23.5-acre site fronting Peachtree Parkway Highway 141 in

Gwinnett County that is zoned for 292 apartments

North Springs 9.8-acre site located on Peachtree Dunwoody Road in Sandy Springs

that is zoned for 356 residential units 210000 square feet ofoffice space and 56000

square feet of retail space

Sawmill Village 22.0-acre site located in Forsyth County that is zoned for 154

apartments

Highway 20 38.2-acre site located in Cumming that is zoned for 210 apartments
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Land Held for Investment

Westside 44.0-acre site located on Westside Parkway in Aipharetta that is zoned for 326

residential units and density of 500000 square feet for university education center or

office

We believe the long-term demand for multifamily housing in Atlanta will increase as Atlantas

population grows We believe that the outlook for Atlantas apartment market remains positive in the

long run The following information is based on statistical estimates published by the Atlanta Regional

Commission which we refer to as the ARC The ARC is the regional planning and governmental

coordination agency for the 10-county Atlanta Region which is composed of Cherokee Clayton Cobb

DeKalb Douglas Fayette Fulton Gwinnett Henry and Rockdale counties The estimated population of

the Atlanta Region increased by 19.5% from 3429379 persons in 2000 to 4099600 persons in 2008

making it one of the largest metropolitan areas in the country and the largest in the Southeast Total

housing units in the Atlanta Region increased by 348858 units or 26.8% from 1302256 in 2000 to

1651114 in 2008 Multifamily homes in the Atlanta Region increased 1.6% from 384740 units in

2000 to 506189 units in 2008

The tables on the following page provide information about our operating properties
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The following table provides information about our retail and office properties as of December 31 2008

Approximate Average Physical

Retail or Rentable Base Rent Occupancy
Office Year Area per as of

Property Location Acquired Square Feet Square Foot 12/31/08

Retail

Grand Pavilion Johns Creek 2005 62323 $18.88 44.6%

Bassett Center Gwinnett County 2005 19949 20.93 92.3%

Spectrum Center Gwinnett County 2005 30050 26.26 56.8%

Addison Place Shops Johns Creek 2008 44293 24.46 35.1%

Total Retail 156615 $21.94 50.1%

Northridge
Atlanta 2001 37.864 $20.25 59.0%

Office Building

We acquired the first three retail properties listed below from unrelated sellers We developed and constructed

the Addison Place Shops retail center which was largely completed in May 2005 and the 5088 square foot

building was completed in 2008
total of 6245 square

feet of the occupied space the Northridge office building is our corporate headquarters

The following table provides information about the scheduled expirations of leases in our retail and office

properties

Expiring of Total

Number of Approximate Approximate Expiring of Total

Expiring Rentable Area Rentable Area Annualized Annualized

Year Leases Square Feet Square Feet Base Rent Base Rent

2009 20230 23.9% 434162 22.0%

2010 10050 11.9% 185580 9.4%

2011 8995 10.6% 224999 11.4%

2012 12430 14.7% 353159 17.9%

2013 27626 32.6% 634985 32.1%

2014 and later 5370 6.3% 141768 7.2%

Total 31 84701 100.0% $1974653 100.0%

Lease expiration table does not include option periods
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As described below our operating properties and six tracts of undeveloped land are located

primarily along the Georgia 400 corridor in submarkets or geographic areas within Fulton Gwinnett or

Forsyth counties Each heading identifies the property or properties within the specified county and

submarket We obtained population and employment data for each Atlanta submarket from the ARC

Fulton County

Fulton County is the largest county in the Atlanta Region in terms of population employment

housing units and land area Seven of our twelve properties are located in north Fulton County

Johns Creek

The City of Johns Creek is located in the northeast corner of Fulton County Johns Creek

officially became city on December 2006 when the governance of the new city transferred from

Fulton County to Johns Creeks elected officials and city government It is currently the 10th largest city

in the state of Georgia with population of 69268 The Johns Creek area is easily accessible via

Georgia 400 and offers convenient proximity and access to both urban and suburban employment bases

and retail conveniences including major regional malls such as North Point Mall and Perimeter Mall

We have two properties located within Johns Creek

Addison Place Shops The 44293 square foot Addison Place Shops retail center is located

directly in front of the 403-unit Addison Place apartment community at the intersection of Jones Bridge

Road and Abbotts Bridge Road At March 23 2009 the Addison Place Shops was 1.1% occupied

Grand Pavilion Grand Pavilion is 62323 square foot retail center located at the intersection of

Kimball Bridge Road and State Bridge Road We acquired the property in September 2005 as part of

Section 1031 tax-deferred exchange from the sale of our Ballantyne Place apartment community At

March 23 2009 the property was 38.8% occupied

Alpharetta

Aipharetta located in the northern part of Fulton County is one of the fastest growing cities in

the Atlanta metropolitan area with population of 52392 The Alpharetta area is easily accessible from

Georgia 400 and offers convenient proximity and access to both urban and suburban employment centers

and retail conveniences including major regional malls such as North Point and Perimeter Mall

Westside Our 44.0-acre Westside property is located between Haynes Bridge Road and Mansell

Road within 220-acre master planned development known as Westside Westside is new upscale

mixed-use development that includes condominiums office space retail university education and

retirement housing as well as Encore Park for the Arts 27-acre arts complex including performing

arts center and 12000-seat amphitheater The Encore Park Amphitheater which opened in 2008 is the

heart of major complex for the performing and visual arts Our land is zoned for 326 residential units

and 500000 square feet for university education center or office 14.5-acre portion of our land is

currently restricted from development to give the Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority

MARTA the opportunity to determine if it wants to buy the land and develop rail station Because the

existing MARTA rail lines are located on the east side of Georgia 400 and our property is located on the

west side of Georgia 400 we believe that MARTA will not want to purchase the land and that we will be

able to develop the land consistent with the current zoning The MARTA restriction expires on the earlier

26



to occur of MARTAs decision to forgo acquiring the property or December 31 2010 Because of the

restriction we are holding the Westside land as an investment for future development

Perimeter Center/North Springs Area

The Perimeter Center/North Springs area offers convenient proximity and access to both urban

and suburban employment bases and retail conveniences Georgia 400 and 1-285 provide direct access

within minutes to major regional malls such as Perimeter Mall and North Point Mall The Phipps

Plaza/Lenox Mall/Buckhead area and downtown Atlantas Central Business District are readily accessible

via the Georgia 400 extension which connects to 1-85 South near downtown Atlanta The Perimeter

Center submarket is one of the largest office retail and housing submarkets in the southeastern United

States It is Atlantas largest employment center outside of downtown Atlanta and includes

approximately 32 million square feet of office and retail space

North Springs Our North Springs property is 9.84-acre mixed-use development located on

Peachtree Dunwoody Road across the street from the North Springs MARTA rail station The property is

zoned for three individual buildings which includes one building consisting of 236 apartments second

building consisting of 120 condominium units third building consisting of 210000 square feet of office

space and 56000 square feet of street-level retail space We have removed approximately 137000 cubic

yards of dirt from the property and have completed the development work on this property We do not

intend to begin construction on our North Springs property during 2009

Northridge Office Building Situated on 3.9 acres on Northridge Road in heavily wooded park-

like setting our three-story 37864 square foot office building serves as our corporate headquarters We

occupy 6245 square feet on the third floor and lease the remaining 7190 square feet on the third floor to

Roberts Properties and Roberts Construction We have one unaffihiated tenant occupying part of the

first floor At March 23 2009 the property was 59.0% occupied At September 30 2008 we recorded

$1255000 impairment loss on our Northridge office building

Northridge Apartment Community Our Northridge property is 10.9-acre site located next to

our Northridge office building in Sandy Springs The property is zoned for mixed-use and will include

220 residential housing units consisting of one and two-bedroom apartments along with covered parking

for residents We have started clearing and grading the site and expect to start construction by mid-year

We own the property free of any encumbrances

Gwinnett County

From 2000 to 2008 Gwinnett Countys population increased 27.9% to 752800 Gwinnetts

strong transportation networks excellent public education system and affordable home prices contribute

to the countys growth and employment base of 322771 jobs

Peachtree Corners Area

The Peachtree Corners area of Gwinnett County is readily accessible from 1-285 1-85 and

Georgia 400 providing convenient proximity and access to both urban and suburban employment bases

and retail conveniences The upscale Forum shopping center anchors the shopping district located within

Peachtree Corners major technology employment center in the area is Technology Park Atlanta

500-acre master-planned office development that is home to 138 companies in 3.8 million square feet of

office space
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Peachtree Parkway Our 23.5-acre Peachtree Parkway property is zoned for 292 apartments

The property is located on Peachtree Parkway at the intersection of Peachtree Corners Circle and across

the street from the Forum shopping center Roberts Properties has completed the development work

Mall of Georgia Area

The Mall of Georgia which opened in 1999 is the largest mall in the Southeast at 2.2 million

square feet It is located in Buford approximately 30 miles northeast of Atlanta The Mall anchors

major retail area containing more than 3.0 million square feet of retail space

Bassett Shopping Center Our Bassett Shopping Center is 19949 square foot retail center

located across the ring road from the Mall of Georgia The property is anchored by Bassett Furniture

which occupies approximately 75% of the retail center The property was 100% occupied at March 23

2009

Spectrum Shopping Center Our two-level Spectrum Shopping Center is 30050 square foot

retail center located on Highway 20 directly across from the main entrance to the Mall of Georgia The

retail center consists of small retail shops with no anchor tenant The property was 56.8% occupied and at

March 23 2009 At December 31 2008 we recorded $1300000 impairment loss on the Spectrum

retail center

Forsyth County/Cumming

The city of Cumming is rapidly growing area located approximately 30 miles north of Atlanta

near Georgia 400 Between 2000 and 2008 the population of Forsyth County increased 66.8% from

98407 to 164100 Cumming is located north of Alpharetta in Forsyth County

Sawmill Village Our Sawmill Village property is 22-acre site that is zoned for 154 apartments

The property is located at the intersection of Georgia Highway and Old Atlanta Road in Forsyth

County This 154-unit community will be similar in size to Rosewood Plantation and Ivey Brook two

other 150-unit communities we previously developed and sold for substantial return We intend to

begin construction on this property in 2009 assuming we are able to obtain the necessary construction

financing

Highway 20 Our Highway 20 property is 38.2-acre site that is zoned for 210 apartments The

property is located on Georgia Highway 20 at the intersection of Elm Street just north of Cummings

town square and just three blocks from the elementary middle and high schools Similar to our Sawmill

Village property described above we intend to begin construction on this property in 2009 assuming we

are able to obtain the necessary construction financing

Summary of Debt Secured by Our Properties

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operation Liquidity and Capital Resources Debt Summary Schedule for an explanation of our current

debt structure including the following information for each loan principal balance at December 31

2008 principal balance at its scheduled maturity date interest rate maturity date and

monthly principal and interest payment
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Possible Additional Communities to Be Developed

From time to time Roberts Properties plans the development of other apartment communities to

be located on property owned by Roberts Properties or other affiliates of Mr Roberts or on property that

one of those entities is interested in acquiring In other instances Roberts Properties may contract to buy

property and then assign the contract to us immediately before closing so that we can acquire it In prior

years we have acquired properties from Mr Roberts or his affiliates after complying with our conflict of

interest policies and our code of ethics and business conduct Please see Item Business Item 10

Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance and Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Director Independence for more information about these matters We presently do not

have any plans to acquire additional properties or communities from Mr Roberts or his affiliates

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of Roberts Realty the operating partnership or our properties is presently subject to any

material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material litigation threatened against any of them

Routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business is not expected to result in any material losses

to us or the operating partnership

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Data for 2007 and 2008

Our common stock trades on the NYSE Alternext US formerly named the American Stock

Exchange under the symbol RPI The following table provides the quarterly high and low sales prices

per share reported on the NYSE Alternext US during 2008 and 2007 as well as the dividends declared

per share during each quarter The sales prices per share have been adjusted to reflect the cash and stock

distributions described in footnote to the table

Dividends

Quarter Ended Low Declared

2008 First Quarter $3.75 $2.25 None

Second Quarter 3.50 2.57 None

Third Quarter 3.13 1.95 $0.66

Fourth Quarter 2.25 0.53 $1.56

2007 First Quarter $4.04 $3.73 None

Second Quarter 4.04 3.35 None

Third Quarter 3.87 3.61 None

Fourth Quarter 3.76 2.93 None

On June 24 2008 we sold our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community for $60000000 to an

unrelated buyer Net cash proceeds at closing totaled $29654952 from which we paid distribution

equal to $0.66 per share/unit or $5005586 in total to our shareholders and unitholders on August

2008 On December 18 2008 our board of directors declared special distribution of $9058000 or

$1.56 per share The distribution was paid on January 29 2009 in combination of 20% in cash or

$0.31 per share and 80% in our common stock equal to $1.25 per share to shareholders of record at

the close of business on December 29 2008 We paid total of $2362909 in cash to shareholders

and unitholders We issued to shareholders total of 3754732 shares valued at an aggregate amount

of $7246633

Shareholder Data

As of March 23 2009 there were approximately 231 holders of record of our common stock

As of March 23 2009 we had 10122418 shares outstanding In addition 2366769 shares are

reserved for issuance to unitholders from time to time upon their exercise of redemption rights as

explained in Item Business The Operating Partnership There is no established public trading market

for the units As of March 23 2009 the operating partnership had 116 unitholders of record

Distribution Policy

We depend upon distributions from the operating partnership to fund our distributions to

shareholders Distributions by the operating partnership and thus distributions by us will continue to be

at the discretion of our board of directors
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We have not paid regular quarterly dividends since the third quarter of 2001 While we have in

the past paid distributions from the net cash proceeds of property sales we presently have no plans to pay
distribution or to resume paying regular quarterly dividends We expect to use the net cash proceeds

from any property sales we might pursue during 2009 only to pay distribution to shareholders and
unitholders to the extent necessary to maintain our status as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Any distributions beyond that amount will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors To maintain

our qualification as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code we must make annual distributions to

shareholders of at least 90% of our taxable income which does not include net capital gains Under some
circumstances we may be required to make distributions in excess of cash available for distribution to

meet IRS distribution requirements

Stock Repurchase Plan

The following table and the accompanying footnotes provide information about our stock

repurchase plan and the repurchases we made in the fourth
quarter of 2008 We did not repurchase any

shares in the first three quarters of 2008 Under the plan we may repurchase shares from time to time by
means of open market purchases and in solicited and unsolicited privately negotiated transactions

depending on availability our cash position and price

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum

Number or
Total Number of Appropriate

Shares Dollar

or Units Value of Shares

Purchased as or Units That

Average Part of Publicly May Yet Be

Total Number of Price Paid Announced Purchased Under
Shares or Units Per Share Plans or the Plans or

Period Purchased or Unit Programs Programs1

October 2008

October 31 2008 37412

November 2008

November 30 2008 37412

December 2008

December3l2008 $1.89 291600
Total

In September 1998 our board authorized stock repurchase plan of up to 400000 shares of our

outstanding common stock We repurchased 362588 shares for $2764000 prior to 2002 On
December 2008 our board of directors amended our stock repurchase program to authorize the

company to repurchase up to 300000 shares of its outstanding common stock including the

remaining 37412 shares under the plan before that amendment The maximum number of the

shares that may yet be purchased under the plan is provided as of December 31 2008 All

repurchases in December 2008 were made in open market transactions

Subsequently on January 13 2009 our board of directors amended our stock repurchase plan to

authorize the company to repurchase up to 600000 shares of our outstanding common stock
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effective on that date Under this policy as of March 23 2009 we have authority to repurchase an

additional 585882 shares under the plan The plan does not have an expiration date

Sales of Unregistered Shares

In 2007 and 2008 we did not sell any shares of stock that were not registered under the Securities

Act

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This Item does not apply to smaller reporting companies
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Overview

We develop own and operate real estate assets for lease as self-administered self-managed

equity real estate investment trust or REIT We conduct our business through Roberts Properties

Residential L.P which we refer to as the
operating partnership The operating partnership either

directly or through one of its wholly owned subsidiaries owns all of our properties As of March 23
2009 Roberts Realty owns an 81.1% interest in the operating partnership and is its sole general partner
We expect to continue to conduct our business in this organizational structure

Recent Developments

Sale ofAddison Place in June 2008

On June 24 2008 we sold our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community for $60000000 to an

unrelated buyer The sale resulted in gain on sale of $28347666 Net cash proceeds at closing totaled

$29654952 From these net proceeds we paid cash distributions to our shareholders and unitholders of

$5005586 $0.66 per share/unit on August 2008 and of $2362909 $0.31 per share/unit on January

29 2009 At March 23 2009 we had approximately $13145000 in cash and equivalents

We have accounted for the operations of Addison Place as discontinued
operations for the

years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 Accordingly the analysis and discussion in this Item focuses on
the continuing operations of our remaining properties The sale of Addison Place has affected and will

affect our future results of operations and our liquidity and capital resources generally as follows

Increased Working Capital We received net cash proceeds of $29654952 from the sale

of Addison Place As noted above at March 23 2009 we have approximately

$13145000 in cash and equivalents

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities from Continuing Operations In the past
Addison Place provided significant portion of the net cash provided by operating

activities from continuing operations Accordingly we expect net cash provided by
operating activities from continuing operations to be materially lower in calendar year
2009 than in 2008

Reduced Revenues Revenues for Addison Place were $2703362 through June 24 2008
or approximately 50.9% of our total revenue for calendar year 2008 Accordingly our

revenues will be materially lower in 2009 than in 2008

Reduced Income from Operations Income from operations provided by Addison Place

was $1500431 through June 24 2008 Including the results of Addison Place our total

loss from operations for calendar year 2008 was $3025287 Accordingly we expect our

loss from operations to be materially greater in 2009 than in 2008

Reduction in Number of Employees and Associated Costs Our number of employees has

decreased from 12 to five and our related costs will decrease materially Due to our

status as public company with its associated costs that are largely unrelated to our asset
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base the percentage decrease in our overall general and administrative expenses will be

materially less than the percentage of our revenues represented by Addison Place

Reduced Mortgage Notes Payable As of the date we closed the sale of Addison Place

we reduced our mortgage debt by total of $28833212

Reduced Monthly Mortgage Payments Monthly mortgage payments for Addison Place

were $195000 or 43.1% of our total monthly mortgage payments for May 2008 the last

month during which we owned Addison Place for the full month Our monthly mortgage

payments have been reduced by this amount

Loan Renewals in Third Quarter of2008

During the quarter ended September 30 2008 we renewed four loans totaling $18245000 and

extended the maturities to various dates during 2010 as well as reduced the principal amount of the four

loans by total of $1552000

Special Distribution Declared in December 2008 and Paid in January 2009

On December 18 2008 our board of directors declared special distribution of $9058000 or

$1.56 per share The distribution was paid on January 29 2009 in combination of 20% in cash or $0.31

per share and 80% in our common stock equal to $1.25 per share to shareholders of record at the close

of business on December 29 2008 We decided to pay 80% of the distributions to shareholders in

common stock to preserve our cash during this extraordinary credit crunch In particular we need cash

for the following purposes

to repay if necessary part of the $12252000 that we will owe to lender on April 30 2009

and will seek to refinance or extend

to provide the equity required to develop and construct two new apartment communities as

we plan and

to provide working capital to enable us to cover our negative operating cash flow until we

complete our development and construction program

On January 29 2009 we issued 3754732 shares in.the stock portion of the distribution described

above Taking into account this distribution as well as exchanges by unitholders of units for shares as of

March 23 2009

we have 10122418 outstanding shares of common stock and

the operating partnership
has 1436987 outstanding units of limited partnership interest

with each unit being convertible into 1.647 shares of our common stock

The trading price of our common stock adjusted downward in December 2008 in light of the substantial

cash and stock distributions we announced on December 18 2008 and paid on January 29 2009
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Trends and Outlook

Short-Term Loans Maturing in April 2009

We have two loans from Wachovia Bank N.A that mature on April 30 2009 These two loans

total $12252000 the $8175000 loan secured by our Peachtree Parkway land and the $4077000 loan

secured by our Highway 20 land We intend to refinance these loans with the same lender or with another

lender or lenders We may be required to pay down the loans in connection with refinancing To fund

any required principal payments we may use cash from one or more of the following sources our

existing cash contributions of joint venture partner net proceeds from the sale of another property or

equity we raise in private offering If we are unable to refinance these loans in some manner or to reach

agreement with the lender to extend these loans the lender could foreclose on our Peachtree Parkway

Highway 20 and North Springs properties which would have material adverse financial and business

consequences for us In that event we could be forced to dispose of all or substantial portion of our

properties in highly unfavorable circumstances

On March 19 2009 we entered into loan commitment letter with local bank to provide $3.5

million loan to refinance the Highway 20 land subject to customary closing conditions Consistent with

our business plan to lower the amount of debt on our balance sheet at closing we would reduce the debt

secured by our Highway 20 land by $577000 The loan would mature on or about October 31 2010

Continued Negative Cash Flow

We own six tracts of undeveloped land totaling 148.4 acres Five of these tracts Peachtree

Parkway Westside Highway 20 Sawmill Village and North Springs which we carry on our balance

sheet at combined value of $53623000 are currently encumbered with land loans totaling

$21252000 Our Northridge land is the only one of our six tracts of undeveloped land that is not

encumbered with land loan Because undeveloped land does not generate revenue the majority of our

negative cash flow is due to the carrying costs interest expense and property taxes on our undeveloped

land In addition the financial performance of our four neighborhood retail centers and office building

continues to be challenged by the weakness in the national and local economy For these reasons as well

as the absence of the operating cash flow we previously received from our Addison Place apartment

community we expect to continue to generate negative operating cash flow and to operate at loss for the

foreseeable future

Although we believe we have excellent well-located assets significant amount of our assets

consists of undeveloped land that is generating negative cash flow due to carrying costs as noted above

Our business plan to reduce our negative cash flow includes the following

converting land loans to construction loans on two of our properties given that

construction loans fund interest out of draws on the loans

developing and constructing new apartment communities on the land we own as

described below with the expectation that we will begin to generate positive cash flow as

we construct the communities and begin to lease them up

increasing the occupancy percentages of our retail and office properties and

selling one or more assets

We may sell one or more assets to independent purchasers or to Roberts Properties or an affiliate

of Roberts Properties and we are considering forming joint ventures and raising equity privately We
would use all or substantial portions of the equity contribution of our joint venture partner or of the
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equity we raise privately to pay down our debt We are in discussions with possible joint venture

participants such as life insurance companies hedge funds foreign investors and local investors as well

as Roberts Properties Although this strategy
will not completely eliminate our negative cash flow we

believe that it should put us in stronger position as we pursue our development/construction activities

Development and Construction Plans

We are moving forward with the development and construction of our next two apartment

communities Northridge and Sawmill Village Despite the very challenging economic conditions we

believe this is good time to create multifamily assets and our banks have told us that they will consider

making construction loans for that purpose Because of the rapid slowdown in the economy we believe

we can build at lower construction cost than in the recent past We have created value for our

shareholders in the past by building when construction costs were lower generally during economic

downturns or recessions We believe that any capital we need to fund the construction of new

multifamily property in addition to construction loan and our cash on hand would come from the

proceeds of sale of another property the contributions of joint venture partner or equity we raise

privately

No Quarterly Dividends

We have not paid regular quarterly dividends since the third quarter of 2001 and we have no

plans to resume paying regular quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future We will make distributions

however to the extent required to maintain our status as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31 2008 to the Year Ended December 31 2007

Loss from continuing operations net of the minority interest of the unitholders in the operating

partnership increased $1224687 or 37.5% from $3264844 loss for the year ended December 31

2007 to $4489531 loss for the year ended December 31 2008 We explain below the major variances

between the year ended December 31 2008 and the year ended December 31 2007

Total operating revenues increased $144977 or 5.9% from $2454537 for the year ended

December 31 2007 to $2599514 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase in operating

revenues is due primarily to rent increases and new leases

Operating expenses consisting of personnel utilities repairs and maintenance landscaping

property taxes marketing insurance and other expenses increased $65151 or 5.4% from $1202340 for

the year ended December 31 2007 to $1267491 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase in

operating expenses is due primarily to utilities repairs and maintenance and property taxes

General and administrative expenses increased $141710 or 8.4% from $1680955 for the year

ended December 31 2007 to $1822665 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was due

primarily to increases in professional services and in corporate overhead expenses

Bad debt expense increased $139510 from $2130 for the year ended December 31 2007 to

$141640 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was due primarily to the write-off of past

due rent from retail tenants that vacated their retail space before the maturity of their leases
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The write-off of the fair value/market value of leases decreased $14752 or 32.4% from $45598
for the year ended December 31 2007 to $30846 for the year ended December 31 2008 This decrease

was due to greater write-off in 2007 than in 2008 of the unamortized balance of the leases of retail

tenants whose leases were either terminated or not renewed during each year

During 2008 we recorded $2555000 impairment loss on real estate consisting of $1255000

impairment loss on our Northridge office building and $1300000 impairment loss on our Spectrum

retail center We had no impairment losses during the 2007 period

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $35419 or 2.6% from $1343009 for the year

ended December 31 2007 to $1307590 for the year ended December 31 2008 This decrease was due

primarily to reduction of the amortization of the fair market value of leases for the Bassett Spectrum
and Grand Pavilion retail centers of $76546 offset by an increase of $51836 in depreciation expense

related to tenant improvements

Interest income increased $162040 or 118% from $137160 for the year ended December 31
2007 to $299200 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was due primarily to significant

increase in cash available for investment from the sale of our Addison Place apartment community in

June 2008

Interest expense decreased $1076279 or 42.7% from $2518355 for the year ended December

31 2007 to $1442076 for the year ended December 31 2008 This decrease was due primarily to

an increase of $502305 of interest that was capitalized on our Northridge Sawmill

Village and Peachtree Parkway land in accordance with SFAS No 34 Capitalization

of Interest Cost and

$559812 reduction in interest paid on six floating rate loans Addison Place Shops

Northridge office building Peachtree Parkway Highway 20 Sawmill Village and

Westside due to decrease in the average 30-day LIBOR rate in 2008 compared to

2007

These amounts were offset by $24942 increase in interest paid on our line of credit due to higher

balance outstanding on our line of credit during 2008 compared to 2007

Legal seftlement decreased $78000 for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to the year

ended December 31 2008 During 2007 we received $78000 to settle the early lease terminations of

two of our former retail tenants located at our Spectrum retail center There were no legal settlements

during 2008

Amortization of deferred financing and leasing costs increased $51151 or 33.8% from $151225
for the year ended December 31 2007 to $202376 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase

was due primarily to an increase of loan costs on our land loans as well as an increase of leasing costs for

our four retail centers and office building

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We made significant progress during 2008 with regard to our liquidity and balance sheet

flexibility On June 24 2008 we closed the sale of our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community for
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$60000000 which resulted in net cash proceeds of $29654952 From these net proceeds we paid cash

distributions to our shareholders and unitholders of $5005586 on August 2008 and of $2362909 on

January 29 2009 In addition we improved our balance sheet flexibility by renewing four loans totaling

$18245000 extending the maturities of those loans to various dates during 2010 and paying down the

principal amount of those loans by total of $1552000 We currently have only two land loans totaling

$12252000 that mature in 2009 These two loans are the $8175000 loan on our Peachtree Parkway

land and the $4077000 loan on our Highway 20 land both of which mature on April 30 2009 On

August 28 2008 we renewed our $2500000 unsecured revolving line of credit to provide funds for

short-term working capital purposes The line of credit matures on September 2009 As of March 23

2009 there was no outstanding balance on the line of credit

Sources and Uses of Capital

At December 31 2008 we had $113357563 in total assets of which $16454995 or 14.5%

consisted of cash As of March 23 2009 we held $13145000 in cash and cash equivalents We believe

that our most important uses of our capital resources will be

to repay if necessary part of the $12252000 that we will owe on April 30 2009

to provide the equity required to develop and construct two new apartment communities and

to provide working capital to enable us to cover our negative operating cash flow until we

complete our development and construction program

Our cash resources are inadequate to cover the above uses fully To raise additional capital we may sell

one or more assets to third party or to Roberts Properties or an affiliate of Roberts Properties and we

are considering forming joint ventures and raising equity privately

Short- and Long-Term Liquidity Outlook

Our operating revenues are not adequate to provide short-term 12 months liquidity for the

payment of all direct rental operating expenses interest and scheduled amortization of principal on

mortgage debt We are currently using the cash proceeds from the sale of Addison Place to meet our

short-term liquidity requirements including general and administrative expenses and improvements and

renovations at existing properties If we are unable to secure construction and permanent financing or

otherwise refinance our short-term debt we may be forced to sell one or more properties to repay our

short-term debt We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements including future developments

and debt maturities from the proceeds of construction and permanent loans and if necessary from the

sale of properties We believe that any capital we need to fund the construction of new multifamily

property in addition to construction loan and our current cash balances would come from the proceeds

of sale of another property the contributions of joint venture partner or equity we raise privately

Comparison of Twelve Months Ended December 31 2008 to Twelve Months Ended December 31

2007

Cash and cash equivalents increased $15851122 during the year ended December 31 2008

compared to decrease of $3804602 during the year ended December 31 2007 The change is due to an

increase in cash provided by investing activities of $55907421 offset by an increase in cash used in

operating activities of $23840 and an increase in cash used in financing activities of $36227857 as

described in more detail below
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Net cash used in operating activities increased $23840 from using $1069262 of cash during the

year ended December 31 2007 to using $1093102 of cash during the year ended December 31 2008

This increase is due to

$1597055 increase in the loss from continuing operations before minority interest

$614199 decrease in cash provided by discontinued operations Addison Place

$240819 decrease in amounts due to affiliates

$99344 decrease in security deposits and prepaid rent

$58185 decrease in the amortization of above and below market leases

$52817 decrease in the amortization of deferred compensation

$70328 decrease in depreciation and amortization expense

$36838 decrease related to the forfeiture of restricted stock by former employee and

$14752 decrease in the write-off ofthe fair market value of leases

These amounts were offset by

$2555000 increase in impairment loss on real estate

$189180 increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses relating to operations and

$16317 decrease in other assets

Net cash provided by investing activities increased $55907421 from using $2289835 of cash

during the year ended December 31 2007 to $53617586 of cash provided by investing activities during

the year ended December 31 2008 This increase is due to

$58525621 increase in cash provided by discontinued operations Addison Place of

which $58488164 was provided by the sale of Addison Place on June 24 2008 before

the payment of mortgage notes outstanding and

$20506 decrease related to the payment of leasing costs

These amounts were offset by

$1567557 increase in the development and construction of real estate assets

$550931 increase in restricted cash

$407516 decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses related to investing

activities and

$112702 decrease in due to affiliates

Net cash used in financing activities increased $36227857 from using $445505 of cash during

the year ended December 31 2007 to using $36673362 of cash during the year ended December 31
2008 This increase is due to

$28623577 increase in cash used by discontinued operations Addison Place of

which $28833212 consisted of mortgage notes repaid or assumed by the buyer in

connection with the sale of Addison Place on June 24 2008

$5005586 distribution paid to shareholders and unitholders on August 2008

$815000 used to repay land notes

An increase during 2008 of $777696 used to repay construction notes

$400000 used to repay the line of credit during 2008 compared to proceeds received of

$400000 during 2007
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an increase during 2008 of $108100 used to pay loan costs

an increase during 2008 of $70698 used to repay an insurance premium note payable

$15886 used to purchase treasury stock and

an increase of $11314 in the principal repayment of mortgage notes payable

Debt Summaiy

The table and accompanying footnotes on the following two pages explain our debt structure

including for each loan the principal balance at December 31 2008 and at its scheduled maturity

interest rate maturity date and monthly principal and interest payment For each loan the operating

partnership or its wholly owned subsidiary is the borrower and Roberts Realty is the guarantor The

amount shown in the column titled Balance at Maturity assumes the full amount of each loan is drawn

and we make any required principal payments prior to maturity
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Debt Maturities

Our existing loans will be amortized with scheduled monthly payments as well as balloon

payments at maturity through 2019 as summarized below

Debt Maturity Schedule

As of December 31 2008

Principal

Year Payments Properties with Balloon Payments

2009 $12643209 Peachtree Parkway land and Highway 20 land

2010 18270712 Westside Sawmill Addison Shops Northridge Office Building

2011 282376

2012 297737

2013 6256980 Grand Pavilion

Thereafter 6958006 Spectrum and Bassett retail centers

Total S4470902O

Short-Term Debt

We have total of $21252000 in debt that matures on or before March 23 2010 assuming no

borrowings under our $2.5 million unsecured line of credit For an explanation of how we plan to address

the $12252000 in debt that matures on April 30 2009 see Trends and Outlook Short-Term Loans

Maturing in April 2009 in this Item above

We have $2.5 million unsecured line of credit that matures on September 2009 We use this

loan from time to time to provide funds for short-term working capital purposes At March 23 2009

there was no outstanding balance on the line of credit We intend to renew the line of credit although

there is no assurance that the bank will offer renewal or if the renewal is offered that it will be on

favorable terms

Our $6000000 Westside loan matures on February 27 2010 and our $3000000 Sawmill

Village loan matures on February 28 2010 Although we expect to extend or refinance these loans at or

before their scheduled maturity we do not expect to have the funds available to repay all or any

substantial portion of the loans at maturity nor have we begun to seek any commitments to renew or

refinance them

Long-Term Debt

We have five mortgage loans that mature at various dates from April 2010 through October 2019

If we still own property securing loan at the maturity date of the loan we expect to refinance the

maturing debt because we do not expect to have funds on hand sufficient to repay that debt at maturity

Floating Rate Debt

We have six loans and one line of credit that bear interest at floating rates These loans which

had an aggregate outstanding balance of $30390334 at March 23 2009 bear interest at rates ranging

from 175 to 425 basis points over the 30-day LIBOR rate Changes in LIBOR that increase the interest

rates on these loans will increase our interest expense and will do so in the future if rates were to continue

to rise For example 1.0% increase in the interest rates on those loans would increase our interest
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expense by approximately $303000 per year and adversely affect our liquidity and capital resources to

that degree The 30-day LIBOR rate has recently been volatile due to the unsettled credit markets For

example the 30-day LIBOR rate was 4.587% on October 10 2008 but was 0.56% on March 18 2009

Critical Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

critical accounting policy is one that requires significant judgment or difficult estimates and is

important to the presentation of our financial condition or results of operations Because we are in the

business of owning operating and developing residential communities retail shopping centers and other

commercial real estate assets our critical accounting policies relate to cost capitalization and asset

impairment

Cost Capitalization

Our real estate assets are stated at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value if deemed impaired

The cost of buildings and improvements includes interest property taxes insurance and development

fees incurred during the construction period Ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred

major replacements and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Depreciation expense is computed over the estimated useful lives of 27.5 years for buildings and

improvements 15 years for land improvements and five to seven years for furniture fixtures and

equipment

We capitalize direct costs associated with the development and construction of our real estate

projects We expense all internal costs associated with the acquisition of operating these assets to general

and administrative expense in the period we incur those costs We capitalize interest on qualifying

construction expenditures in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No
34 Capitalization of Interest Cost for our real estate assets During the development and construction

of property we capitalize related interest costs as well as other carrying costs such as property taxes

and insurance We begin to expense these items as the property becomes substantially complete and

available for initial occupancy Accordingly we gradually reduce the amounts we capitalize as we

complete construction During the lease-up period as property transitions from initial occupancy to

stabilized occupancy revenues are generally insufficient to cover interest carrying costs and operating

expenses resulting in an operating deficit The size and duration of this lease-up deficit depends on how

quickly construction is completed how quickly we lease the property and what rent levels we achieve

Capitalization of interest and other carrying costs such as property taxes and insurance ceases entirely

upon completion of development and construction activities

Purchase Valuation

We allocate the purchase price of acquired real estate assets to land building and intangible

assets based on their relative fair values For tangible assets classified as real estate assets the values are

determined as though the land was undeveloped and the buildings were vacant Intangible assets typically

consist of above or below market leases customer relationships and the value of in-place leases The fair

value of any above or below market leases is amortized into operating revenues over the terms of the

respective leases The value of in-place leases is amortized over the term of the respective lease

Asset Impairment Evaluation

We periodically evaluate our real estate assets to determine if there has been any impairnient in

the carrying value of the assets in accordance with SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or

Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS No 144 requires impairment losses to be recorded on long-lived
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assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows

estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the assets canying amounts Determining

undiscounted cash flows involves making assumptions about market rents space availability and

operating expenses change in the assumptions used to determine future economic events could result

in an adverse change in the value of property and cause an impairment to be recorded

Real property assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances

indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable An impairment is recognized when the sum of

expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the property The expected cash flows

of an operating property depend on estimates made by management including changes in the national

regional and/or local economic climates competition operating costs tenant occupancy and

holding period change in the assumptions used to determine future economic events could result in

an adverse change in the value of property and cause an impairment to be recorded Due to

uncertainties in the estimation process actual results could differ from such estimates Our

determination of fair value is based primarily on probability-weighted discounted future cash flow

analysis which incorporates available market information as well as other assumptions made by

management For both the Northridge office building and the Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail

center we estimated lower lease rates and occupancy rates in the cash flow assumptions due to market

and economic conditions As result we recorded $1255000 non-cash impairment loss on the

Northridge office building at September 30 2008 and $1300000 non-cash impairment loss on the

Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail center at December 31 2008

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

We generally enter into fixed rate debt instruments In certain situations we may use derivative

financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate exposure on variable-rate

debt We do not use those instruments for trading or speculative purposes

SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities establishes

accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities by requiring that

all derivatives be recognized on the balance sheet and measured at fair value Gains or losses resulting

from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings or recorded in other

comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement when the hedged item affects earnings

depending on the purpose of the derivatives and whether they qualify for hedge accounting treatment

Any ineffective portions of cash flow hedges are recognized immediately in earnings

We are not using derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to hedge

interest rate exposure on our variable-rate debt

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Tn December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS 160 SFAS 160 amends

Accounting Research Bulletin 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling

interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary It clarifies that non-controlling

interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity

in the consolidated financial statements SFAS 160 requires consolidated net income to be reported at

amounts that include the amounts attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest The

provisions of SFAS 160 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 including

interim periods beginning January 2009 The adoption of SFAS 160 is not expected to have material

effect on our consolidated financial statements
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In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 14 1R Business Combinations

SFAS No 14 1R which changes how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact

financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods SFAS No 141R requires

the acquiring entity in business combination to recognize all and only the assets acquired and

liabilities assumed in the transaction and establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement

objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combination Certain provisions of

this standard will among other things impact the determination of acquisition-date fair value of

consideration paid in business combination including contingent consideration exclude transaction

costs from acquisition accounting and change accounting practices for acquired contingencies

acquisition-related restructuring costs and tax benefits This Statement applies prospectively to business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

period beginning on or after December 15 2008 We are currently evaluating the impact of

SFAS No 141R on its consolidated financial statements

On January 2008 we adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements for financial assets

and liabilities SFAS No 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received from the sale of an

asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date Depending on the nature of the asset or liability we use various valuation techniques

and assumptions when estimating fair value In accordance with SFAS No 157 we apply the following

fair value hierarchy

Level Assets or liabilities for which the identical item is traded on an active exchange such

as publicly-traded instruments or futures contracts

Level Assets and liabilities valued based on observable market data for similar instruments

Level Assets or liabilities for which significant valuation assumptions are not readily

observable in the market instruments valued based on the best available data some of which is

internally-developed and considers risk premiums that market participant would require

When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to

be recorded at and/or marked to fair value we consider the principal or most advantageous market in

which it would transact and considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

asset or liability When possible we look to active and observable markets to price identical assets or

liabilities When identical assets and liabilities are not traded in active markets we look to market

observable data for similar assets and liabilities Nevertheless certain assets and liabilities are not

actively traded in observable markets and for those assets and liabilities we must use alternative valuation

techniques to derive fair value measurement The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents

restricted cash and accounts receivable and payable included in our consolidated balance sheets at

December 31 2008 approximate their fair values See Note to the audited consolidated financial

statements included in this report for additional discussion of the fair value for fixed rate mortgage debt

The adoption of SFAS No 157 did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilitiesincluding an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS No 159 permits

entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair The provisions of

SFAS No 159 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15
2007 On January 2008 we adopted SFAS No 159 and elected not to apply the provisions of SFAS
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No 159 to our eligible financial assets and liabilities on the date of adoption Accordingly the initial

application of SFAS No 159 had no effect on our consolidated financial statements

Stock Repurchase Plan

We issued press release on January 13 2009 announcing that our board of directors has

amended our stock repurchase plan to authorize us to repurchase up to 600000 shares of our outstanding

common stock effective immediately For more information about this plan see Item Market for

Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Stock Repurchase Plan above

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required for smaller reporting companies

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our financial statements are listed under Item 15a and are filed as part of this annual report on

the pages indicated

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-i

Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31 2008 and

2007 and for the Years Ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets F-2

Consolidated Statements of Operations F-3

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity F-4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on our managements evaluation with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer as of December 31 2008 the end of the period covered by this report our Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Rule 3a- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange
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Act were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or

submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods

specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and is accumulated and communicated to our management
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

Our internal control over financial reporting is process designed as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the

Exchange Act to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In connection with the preparation of our annual consolidated financial statements our

management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2008 Management based this assessment on the criteria established in Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Guidance for Smaller Public Companies issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission which is sometimes referred to as the COSO Framework
Managements assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control over financial

reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
Based on this assessment our management has concluded that our internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of December 31 2008

This annual
report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our registered public

accounting firmregarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject

to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the SEC that permit
us to provide only managements report in this annual report

Changes in Internal Controls

Except as described below there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

As disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007
management identified material weakness in our information technology IT general controls in

connection with its assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2007 In the quarter ended December 31 2008 management completed the

implementation of the following measures to remediate the material weakness in our IT general controls

referenced above

standardized the change management process to increase the discipline with which we
document test approve and implement changes to our IT environment
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adopted operations management procedures to improve our daily backup process and

review of our backup and operations log and

implemented new IT configurations and security management controls to limit and

monitor logical access to our IT systems applications and data

The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions

about the likelihood of future events There can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving

its stated goals under all potential future conditions regardless of how remote

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

We did not file Current Report on Form 8-K to report the lease renewal agreements dated

January 30 2009 between the operating partnership and each of Roberts Properties Construction Inc and

Roberts Properties Inc together the Roberts Companies because these renewal amendments were not

material to us and thus were not required to be described in Current Report on Form 8-K By providing

the disclosure in this Item 9B however we are claiming limited safe harbor provided by SEC rules

from liability under Section 10b of the Exchange Act and Rule Ob-5 thereunder for failure to timely

file reports required by certain items in Form 8-K

We hereby incorporate by reference the description of the lease renewal agreements provided in

Part III Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Transactions with the Roberts Companies Northridge Office Building
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table provides information about our directors and executive officers as of the date

of this report

Term as

Director

Name Expires Position

Charles Roberts 62 2009 Chairman of the Board Chief Executive

Officer and President

Charles Elliott 55 2009 Director Chief Financial Officer Secretary

and Treasurer

Wm Jarell Jones 60 2011 Director Chairman of Audit Committee and

Chairman of Nominating and Governance

Committee

John Davis 43 2010 Director

Ben Spalding 74 2010 Director

Biographical Information

Charles Roberts has served as our Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer and

President since he founded the company in July 1994 Mr Roberts owns directly or indirectly all of the

outstanding stock of and is the president and sole director of Roberts Properties Inc and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc

In October 1970 Mr Roberts established Roberts Properties Inc to develop construct and

manage real estate Beginning in 1980 Mr Roberts and Roberts Properties began to focus on developing

upscale multifamily residential communities and have won numerous local regional and national awards

for the development of these communities Mr Roberts has been frequent national speaker on the topic

of developing upscale multifamily housing and has been recognized as leader in this industry In April

1995 Roberts Properties Management Inc which we acquired in 1997 was recognized as the Property

Management Company of the Year by the National Association of Home Builders On regional level
Roberts Properties was awarded the prestigious Southeast Builders Conference Aurora Award for the best

rental apartment community eight out of the past 20 years On national level Roberts Properties was
twice awarded the prestigious Pillars of the Industry Award from the National Association of Home
Builders for the best low-rise apartments In 1993 Roberts Properties was awarded the coveted Golden
Aurora Award for best overall development in the Southeast

Since January 2006 Mr Roberts has served as president of the board of directors of Big Trees

Forest Preserve 30-acre urban forest in Sandy Springs Georgia dedicated to conservation preservation

and education Since February 2007 Mr Roberts has also served on the Landmarks Preservation

Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Florida
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John Davis director since November 2008 is the President of Bravo Realty Consulting Inc

company that he formed in 2007 to provide consulting services for small and middle market real estate

companies looking for debt and equity Mr Davis has 20 years of experience in the commercial banking

industry From May 2005 to November 2007 he served as Senior Director of Wrightwood Capital

structured debt and equity provider Prior to 2005 he was Senior Vice President with Compass Bank

for 10 years Before he joined Compass Bank he was banker for seven years with Hibernia Bank in

New Orleans During his ten years with Compass Bank Mr Davis was our relationship manager and was

involved in all facets of our business relationship with Compass Bank Mr Davis is also principal in

several entities which own and operate various healthcare businesses primarily skilled nursing facilities

and geriatric-psychiatric hospitals

Charles Elliott served as director from October 1994 to February 1995 and became director

again in 2000 Effective May 31 2006 Mr Elliott again became our Chief Financial Officer Secretary

and Treasurer Previously he was our Secretary and Treasurer from our inception until July 15 2002

and our Chief Financial Officer from April 1995 until July 15 2002 when he became our Senior Vice

President Real Estate He left Roberts Realty as full-time employee on August 30 2002 and returned

on full-time basis from February 17 2003 to September 30 2003 as our Chief Operating Officer In

this interim period he provided limited consulting services for which he was paid fee Mr Elliott

joined Roberts Properties
in August 1993 as Chief Financial Officer and served in that role until April

1995 when he joined Roberts Realty as our Chief Financial Officer He worked for Hunneman Real

Estate Corporation in Boston Massachusetts from 1979 to 1993 most recently as Senior Vice-President

of Accounting and Finance He holds an undergraduate degree in Accounting and masters degree in

Finance

Wm Jarell Jones director since October 1994 is an attorney and has practiced law with the

firm of Wm Jarell Jones P.C in Georgia since November 1993 with an office in Statesboro Georgia

through 2007 and with an office in St Simons from 2002 until the present Mr Jones is also the President

and sole shareholder of Palmetto Realty Company real estate development and brokerage company

primarily involved in the development of single family residential lots in coastal South Carolina and

Georgia Palmetto Realty is registered real estate broker in Georgia and South Carolina and serves as

qualified intermediary and exchange accommodation title holder for like-kind exchanges Mr Jones is

also Certified Public Accountant and in 1976 he formed the public accounting firmof Jones Kolb in

Atlanta Georgia and served as Senior Tax Partner and Co-Managing Partner until December 1988 In

1990 Mr Jones moved to Statesboro and practiced law with the firm of Edenfield Stone Cox until

November 1992 and then with the firm of Jones Rutledge from November 1992 until November 1993

Mr Jones was formerly director for six
years

and the Chairman for two years of the Downtown

Statesboro Development Authority

Ben Spalding director since October 1994 has worked part-time with Matteson Partners an

Atlanta-based executive search firm from April 2003 to the present Previously he served from 2000 to

April 2003 as Executive Vice President of DHR International Inc an executive search firm Mr

Spalding was the sole shareholder of Spalding Company former NASD member broker-dealer that

served from 1980 to 1996 as the exclusive broker-dealer for limited partnerships sponsored by Mr

Roberts Mr Spalding served as President of Spalding Company from 1980 until 1994 For the 20-

year period through 1983 Mr Spalding served in several positions with Johnson Johnson in the health

care field most recently as Healthcare Division Sales Manager for several states in the Southeast Mr

Spalding has bachelors degree in Business Administration from Bellarmine College He has served in

numerous positions
with civic and charitable organizations including serving as National Trustee of the

Cystic Fibrosis Foundation and member of the Board of Trustees of the Metro-Atlanta Crime

Commission He received the Cystic Fibrosis Dick Goldschmidt Award in 1986 for his efforts on behalf

of the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
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Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Roberts Realtys directors

executive officers and persons who own beneficially more than 10% of our outstanding common stock to

file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in their ownership of our common
stock Directors executive officers and greater than 10% shareholders are required by SEC regulations to

furnish us with copies of the forms they file To our knowledge based solely on review of the copies of

such reports furnished to us during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 our directors executive

officers and greater than 10% shareholders complied with all applicable Section 16a filing requirements

except that Dennis James director filed late Form to report two purchase transactions that were
not reported on timely basis Wm Jarell Jones director filed late Form to report two purchase

transactions that were not reported on timely basis and Charles Roberts our Chief Executive Officer

President and director filed late Form to report two purchase transactions that were not reported on

timely basis

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

On March 17 2004 our board of directors adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as

required by the rules of the NYSE Alternext US and the federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act Our code is

designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote

honest and ethical conduct including the ethical handling of corporate opportunities and

actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships

full fair accurate timely and understandable disclosure in
reports and documents that we

file with or submit to the SEC and in other public communications we make

compliance with applicable governmental laws rules and regulations

confidentiality

protection and proper use of company assets

equal employment opportunities and prohibition of discrimination or harassment

the prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to an appropriate person or persons
identified in the code and

accountability for adherence to the code

We will provide copy of the code of business conduct and ethics free of charge to any person who

requests it in writing Please direct your request to our Chief Financial Officer 450 Northridge Parkway
Suite 302 Sandy Springs GA 30350

Audit Committee

The audit committee of our board of directors is composed of Mr Jones its chairman and Mr
John Davis The board has determined that Mr Jones is an audit committee financial expert as
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defined under applicable SEC rules and is independent under the listing standards of the NYSE

Altemext US on which the shares of our common stock are listed

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Executive Officers

Our executive officers are Charles Roberts our Chairman of the Board Chief Executive

Officer and President and Charles Elliott our Chief Financial Officer Biographical information for

Mr Roberts and Mr Elliott is included in Item 10 above Under applicable SEC rules Mr Roberts and

Mr Elliott are our named executive officers Neither of our executive officers has an employment

agreement

Summary Compensation Table for 2008 and 2007

All Other

Stock Compen

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards sation Total

Position Year

Charles Roberts 2008 225000 250000 475000

Chief Executive Officer 2007 224519 224519

President and Chairman

of the Board

Charles Elliott 2008 163795 75000 238795

Chief Financial Officer 2007 127413 48063 175476

Secretary and Treasurer

On June 24 2008 the board of directors of Roberts Realty approved the payment of $250000

bonus to Mr Roberts at the closing of the sale of our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community

On February 28 2007 our compensation committee granted $25000 salary increase to Mr Roberts

for his performance as Chief Executive Officer

Effective May 31 2006 we hired Mr Elliott as our Chief Financial Officer Secretary and Treasurer

Under an arrangement we negotiated with Mr Elliott we pay him $70 per hour for his service in

those positions Mr Elliott receives no employee benefits i.e medical vacation holidays etc and

he is paid only for the actual hours he works In addition Mr Elliott received our standard director

fee of $12000 during 2008 which is included in the salary amount shown in the table We do not

compensate Mr Roberts for his service as director

On June 24 2008 the board of directors of Roberts Realty approved the payment of $75000 bonus

to Mr Elliott at the closing of the sale of our 403-unit Addison Place apartment community

On February 28 2007 our compensation committee granted 6250 shares of restricted stock to Mr

Elliott for his performance as Chief Financial Officer Mr Elliotts restricted shares vested on June

2007 The grant of restricted shares to Mr Elliott in 2007 was not intended as additional

compensation for 2006 and accordingly is reflected as 2007 compensation in the table above
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Director Compensation for 2008

The following table summarizes the compensation we paid to our non-employee directors in

2008

Fees Earned

or Paid in Cash Total

Name

John Davis 2000 2000

Dr James Goodrich 7000 7000

Dennis James 14000 14000

Wm Jarell Jones 42000 42000

Ben Spalding 12000 12000

During 2008 we paid our directors other than Mr Roberts an annual fee of $12000 for

attendance in person or by telephone at meetings of the board of directors and its committees Dr
Goodrich resigned from the board effective August 2008 and Mr James passed away on September

2008 We paid additional compensation of $750 per month to Mr James for serving as the chairman of

the compensation committee

We paid additional compensation of $750 per month to Mr Jones for serving as the chairman of

the audit committee and $250 per month for serving as the chairman of the nominations and governance
committee On February 2008 our board of directors and nominating and governance committee

approved compensation arrangement for Mr Jones of $6000 per month reduced to $2000 per month

on April 2008 for additional work he was asked to perform during 2008 as audit committee chairman

in reviewing the companys properties plans financial statements and projections loans and liquidity

and capital resources Under this compensation arrangement which was in effect from February 2008

through June 30 2008 we paid Mr Jones total of $18000 Notwithstanding the termination of the

arrangement if and to the extent that Mr Jones is required in the future to perform work as the audit

committee chairman that is over and above his normal duties our nominating and governance committee

authorized the payment of additional compensation to Mr Jones on an hourly basis at the rate of $275 per
hour

In addition to the compensation described above we reimburse our directors for reasonable travel

expenses and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their activities on our behalf These

reimbursements are not reflected in the table above

In November 2008 our board authorized an increase in the standard annual fee paid to its non-

employee directors from $12000 to $18000 payable in the amount of $1500 per month for attendance

in person or by telephone at meetings of the Board and its committees effective as of January 2009
In addition our board authorized to continue paying Mr Charles Elliott the standard annual fee paid to

non-employee directors as increased to $18000 or $1500 per month for his services as director

effective as of January 2009 We will continue to pay additional compensation of $750 per month to

the chairman of the audit committee and to the chairman of the compensation committee and $250 per
month to the chairman of the nominating and governance committee In addition we will continue to

reimburse our directors for reasonable travel expenses and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection

with their activities on our behalf
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Ownership of Common Stock and Units

The following table describes the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as of

March 23 2009 for

each person or entity known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the

outstanding shares of common stock

each director and our named executive officers and

our directors and executive officers as group

Except as noted in the footnotes each person named in the following table owns all shares and

partnership units directly and has sole voting and investment power Each of the persons known by us to

beneficially own more than 5% of the common stock has an address in care of our principal office The

Number of Shares Beneficially Owned column in the table includes the shares owned by the persons

named but does not include shares they may acquire by exchanging units of partnership interest in

Roberts Properties Residential L.P our operating partnership for shares of common stock as explained

in the following paragraphs The Number of Shares Underlying Units Beneficially Owned column in the

table reflects all shares that each person has the right to acquire by exchanging units for shares subject to

the limitations described in the following paragraphs In the case of persons who own shares and units

and all directors and executive officers as group the percentages in the Percent of Class column are

not equal to the number of shares then owned by the person divided by the number of outstanding shares

Instead under SEC rules the shares that the person or group can acquire in exchange for units are deemed

to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person or group holding those units when

calculating the percentage ownership of that person or group although shares that other persons can

acquire in exchange for units are not treated as outstanding for purposes of that calculation

Except as described in this paragraph unitholders generally have the right to require the operating

partnership to redeem their units To preserve our qualification as real estate investment trust our

articles of incorporation limit ownership by any one holder to 3.7% of the outstanding shares of our

common stock with two exceptions First Mr Roberts can beneficially own up to 35% of the

outstanding shares Second any shareholder who beneficially owned more than 3.7% of our outstanding

common shares on July 22 2004 the date that we filed an amendment to our articles of incorporation

revising the ownership limits can retain indefinitely the shares the shareholder owned as of that date but

cannot increase that ownership in the future other than by exchanging the units the shareholder owned on

that date for shares The ownership limit will apply when unitholder elects to exchange his or her units

for shares If exchanging units would cause unitholder to exceed the applicable ownership limit other

than by exchanging units the unitholder owned on July 22 2004 as explained above the unitholder will

receive cash to the extent required to bring him or her within this ownership limit In Mr Roberts case

he will receive cash if upon redemption of his units he would own more than 35% of the outstanding

shares of our common stock

unitholder who submits units for redemption will receive at our election eithera number of

shares equal to the number of units submitted for redemption multiplied by the applicable conversion

factor which is currently 1.647 shares for each unit submitted for redemption or cash equal to the

average of the daily market prices of the common stock for the 10 consecutive trading days before the

date of submission multiplied by the number of units submitted Our policy is to issue shares in exchange

for units submitted for redemption
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Number of

Shares

Number of Underlying

Shares Units

Name of Beneficially Beneficially Percent of

Beneficial Owner Owned Owned Total Class

Charles Roberts 3275971 1166920 4442891 39.35%

John Davis 22852 22852

Ben Spalding 82948

Wm Jarell Jones 53130 53130

Charles Elliott 48000 48000

All directors and executive officers

as group persons 3437908 1211913 4649821 41.02%

Less than 1%

The total number of shares outstanding used in calculating this percentage is 10122418 the

number of shares outstanding as of March 23 2009

Includes 53067 shares owned by family limited liability company of which Mr Roberts is the

manager Mr Roberts disclaims beneficial ownership of those shares

Reflects Mr Roberts beneficial ownership of 708512 units each of which is exchangeable for

1.647 shares of our common stock

Includes 12348 shares owned by partnership of which Mr Spaldings wife is the managing

partner Mr Spalding disclaims beneficial ownership of those shares

Reflects Mr Spaldings beneficial ownership of 27318 units which include 2917 units owned

by Mrs Spalding and 24401 units owned by partnerships of which Mrs Spalding is the

managing partner Each unit is exchangeable for 1.647 shares of our common stock Mr
Spalding disclaims beneficial ownership of all units owned by his wife or partnerships of which

she is the managing partner

Includes 3332 shares owned by Mr Jones wife to which Mr Jones disclaims beneficial

ownership

Includes an aggregate of 15680 shares and 27318 units beneficially owned by two directors

wives as to which shares such directors disclaim beneficial ownership
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides equity compensation plan information at December 31 2008 At

our annual shareholders meeting on August 21 2006 our shareholders approved and adopted the 2006

Roberts Realty Investors Inc Restricted Stock Plan The Plan provides for the grant of stock awards to

our employees directors consultants and advisors including employees of Roberts Properties and

Roberts Construction The maximum number of shares of restricted stock that may be granted to any one

individual during the term of the Plan may not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of shares of restricted

stock that may be issued under the Plan As amended on January 27 2009 to take into account our recent

stock distribution we may grant up to 654000 shares of restricted common stock under the Plan subject

to the anti-dilution provisions of the Plan As of March 23 2009 646212 shares remain available to be

granted under the Plan

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of

securities Weighted-

to be issued average Number of securities

upon exercise of exercise price of remaining available for future

outstanding outstanding issuances under equity

options warrants options warrants compensation plans excluding

Plan category and rights and rights securities reflected in column

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders N/A N/A 392212

Equity compensation

plans not approved

by security holders N/A N/A N/A

Total 392.212

Other than our restricted stock plan described above we have no equity compensation plans

under which we could issue stock restricted stock or restricted stock units phantom stock stock options

SARs stock options in tandem with SARs warrants convertible securities performance units and

performance shares or similar instruments
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

General

Roberts Realty conducts its business through Roberts Properties Residential L.P which we refer

to as the operating partnership Roberts Realty owns an 81.1% interest in the operating partnership as of

March 23 2008 and is its sole general partner Mr Charles Roberts our Chairman of the Board Chief

Executive Officer and President owns all of the outstanding shares of both Roberts Properties Inc and

Roberts Properties Construction Inc which we refer to together as the Roberts Companies As

explained below we have entered into transactions with these companies and paid them to perform

services for us

Under applicable SEC rules this Item 13 describes any transaction that has occurred since

January 2007 or any currently proposed transaction in which we were or are to be participant and the

amount involved exceeds $120000 and in which our officers directors and certain other related

persons as defined in the SEC rules had or will have direct or indirect material interest Notes and

to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this
report provide further detail regarding

some of the transactions described in this section including in some cases information for periods before

2007

Transactions with the Roberts Companies

Overview We have paid substantial fees to the Roberts Companies for various types of services

and will continue to do so in the future We have purchased property from Roberts Properties and we
have retained Roberts Properties for development services and Roberts Construction for construction

services for some of our undeveloped properties We summarize these various arrangements below

Northridge Office Building We own three-story 37864 square foot building on Northridge

Parkway in Sandy Springs that serves as our corporate headquarters We occupy portion of the third

floor in the building and we lease the remaining space on that floor to Roberts Properties and Roberts

Construction

On March 27 2006 the operating partnership entered into the original lease agreement with each

of the Roberts Companies The terms of the original lease to Roberts Properties Inc included total of

5336 rentable square feet for one-year term at rate of $19.00 per rentable square foot Under the

lease the tenant has three one-year options to renew its lease for all or part of the premises upon three

months prior written notice to be negotiated at market rents but in no event less than the base rent at the

end of the term On January 30 2009 the operating partnership and Roberts Properties entered into

lease renewal agreement reflecting Roberts Properties exercise of the third one-year renewal option

Other than the current rental rate the lease remains in effect under its original terms The rental rate

remains at $20.00 per rentable square foot the rate provided in the prior one-year renewal agreement

The terms of the original lease to Roberts Properties Construction Inc included total of 1542
rentable square feet for one-year term at rate of $19.00 per rentable square foot Under the lease the

tenant has three one-year options to renew its lease for all or part of the premises upon three months prior

written notice to be negotiated at market rents but in no event less than the base rent at the end of the

term In 2007 the amount of space rented increased to 1854 square feet and the lease otherwise

remained in effect under its original terms On January 30 2009 the operating partnership and Roberts

Properties Construction entered into another lease renewal agreement reflecting Roberts Properties

Constructions exercise of the third one-year renewal option Other than the current rental rate the lease
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remains in effect under its original terms The rental rate remains at $20.00 per rentable square foot the

rate provided in the prior one-year renewal agreement

Northridge Community We intend to develop 220-unit apartment community on 10.9 acres of

undeveloped land located next to our Northridge office building on Northridge Parkway in Sandy

Springs We retained Roberts Properties to complete the design and development work for fee of

$2500 per unit or $550000 which we have paid We also entered into cost plus 10% contract with

Roberts Construction to build the 220 apartment units

Peachtree Parkway Land We own 23.5 acre parcel of undeveloped land in Gwiimett County

The land is zoned for 292 apartment units and is located across Peachtree Parkway from the upscale

Forum Shopping Center

In acquiring the Peachtree Parkway property we assumed and became bound by restrictive

covenant recorded in those records in favor of Roberts Properties and Roberts Construction that provides

that if the then-owner of the property develops it for residential use

Roberts Properties or any entity designated by Mr Roberts will be engaged as the

development company for the project and will be paid development fee in an amount

equal to $5000 per residential unit multiplied by the number of residential units that are

developed on the property with such fee to be paid in equal monthly amounts over the

contemplated development period we have paid Roberts Properties $1460000

development fee in full satisfaction of this part of the covenant and

Roberts Construction or any other entity designated by Mr Roberts will be engaged as the

general contractor for the project on cost plus basis and will be paid the cost of

constructing the project plus 10% 5% profit and 5% overhead with such payments to be

paid commencing with the start of construction

These terms and conditions are consistent with our previous agreements with Roberts Properties

and Roberts Construction for development and construction services for residential communities The

covenant expires on October 29 2014

North Springs Land We own 9.84-acre parcel of undeveloped land in Fulton County that we

refer to as the North Springs property The North Springs property is zoned for 120 condominium units

236 apartment units 210000 square feet of office space and 56000 square feet of retail space In

acquiring the North Springs property we assumed and became bound by restrictive covenant recorded

in those records in favor of Roberts Properties and Roberts Construction The covenant has the same

terms and conditions as the restrictive covenant related to the Peachtree Parkway land described above

except that the covenant expires on January 2015 We have paid Roberts Properties $1780000

development fee in full satisfaction of the part of the covenant relating to development fees

Development Fees From time to time we pay Roberts Properties fees for various development

services that include market studies business plans design finish selection interior design and

construction administration We entered into development and design agreements with Roberts

Properties on four projects which are outlined in the following table
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Total

Amount

Total Incurred Remaining
Contract through Contractual

Amount 2/28/09 Commitment

North Springs 1780000 1780000
Peachtree Parkway 1460000 1460000
Sawmill Village 770000 577500 192500

Highway 20 1050000 100000 950000

5.060000 3.917.500 1142500

Although we have paid Roberts Properties the full contractual amount for development services for some

of the above properties Roberts Properties will continue to provide services as appropriate as we

complete the development of the properties and begin construction

Construction Contracts We enter into contracts in the normal course of business with Roberts

Construction During 2005 we entered into contracts with Roberts Construction on the four projects

mentioned above and we have an existing contract with Roberts Construction we entered into prior to

2005 for the construction of our Northridge project During 2007 we entered into contract with Roberts

Construction for the construction of Building at our Addison Place Shops which is now complete

We paid total of $421731 to Roberts Construction to construct Building Terms of each of the

construction contracts are cost plus 10% As of the date of this report we have not finalized the costs of

the four projects described above

Other Fees and Reimbursements From January 2007 to March 23 2009 we paid Roberts

Properties $85090 for reimbursement of operating costs and expenses and we paid Roberts Construction

$276715 for project work done at our communities

We entered into reimbursement arrangement for services provided by Roberts Properties

effective February 2008 Under the terms of the arrangement we will reimburse Roberts Properties the

cost of providing consulting services in an amount equal to an appropriate hourly billing rate for an

employee multiplied by the number of hours that the employee provided services to us We believe that

the reimbursement arrangement allows us to obtain services from experienced and knowledgeable

personnel without having to bear the cost of employing them on full-time basis From January 2007

to March 23 2009 we incurred $174583 under this policy and as of March 23 2009 we have paid

$168196 to Roberts Properties under this policy

Approval of Transactions with Related Persons

We have two types of policies and procedures for the review approval or ratification of any

transaction we are required to report in the preceding portion of this Item 13 The first is our longstanding

policy that conflicting interest transactions by directors under Georgia law must be authorized by

majority of the disinterested directors but only if there are at least two directors who are disinterested

with respect to the matter at issue The second is that under our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

related party transactions are subject to appropriate review and oversight by the audit committee of our

board of directors We describe each of these policies in more detail below

The board of directors is subject to provisions of Georgia law that are designed to eliminate or

minimize potential conflicts of interest Under Georgia law director may not misappropriate corporate

opportunities that he learns of solely by serving as member of the board of directors In addition under
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Georgia law transaction effected by us or any entity we control including the operating partnership in

which director or specified related persons and entities of the director have conflicting interest of

such financial significance that it would reasonably be expected to exert an influence on the directors

judgment may not be enjoined set aside or give rise to damages on the grounds of that interest if either

the transaction is approved after disclosure of the interest by the affinnative vote of

majority of the disinterested directors or by the affirmative vote of majority of the votes

cast by disinterested shareholders or

the transaction is established to have been fair to us

The board of directors has adopted policy that all conflicting interest transactions must be authorized by

majority of the disinterested directors but only if there are at least two directors who are disinterested

with respect to the matter at issue We have stated this policy in our annual reports on Form 10-K since

we became required to file reports with the SEC In addition under the applicable rules of the NYSE

Alternext US related party transactions are subject to appropriate review and oversight by the audit

committee of our board of directors

Under our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics conflict of interest occurs when an

individuals private interest interferes or appears to interfere with the interests of the company conflict

of interest can arise when director or officer takes actions or has interests that may make it difficult to

perform his or her work for us objectively and effectively For example conflict of interest would arise

if director or officer or member or his or her family receives improper personal benefits as result of

his or her position in the company

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics provides that conflict of interest situation involving

directors or executive officers may include the following

any significant ownership interest in any service provider

any consulting or employment relationship with any service provider supplier or competitor

any outside business activity that detracts from an individuals ability to devote appropriate

time and attention to his or her responsibilities with the company

the receipt of other than nominal gifts or excessive entertainment from any company with

which the company has current or prospective business dealings

being in the position of supervising reviewing or having any influence on the job evaluation

pay or benefit of any immediate family member and

selling anything to the company or buying anything from the company

Anything that would present conflict for director officer or employee would likely also

present conflict if it were related to member of his or her family The Code of Business Conduct and

Ethics provides that any conflict of interest situation including those described above should be

discussed with the appropriate Code of Ethics Contact Person For officers and directors that person is

the chairman of the audit committee Mr Wm Jarell Jones

Under the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics the approval of conflicting interest transactions

is two-pronged As noted above our board of directors has adopted and has long followed policy that

all conflicting interest transactions must be authorized by majority of the disinterested directors but

only if there are at least two directors who are disinterested with respect to the matter at issue In

addition under the applicable rules of the NYSE Altemext US related party
transactions are subject to

appropriate review and oversight by the audit committee of our board of directors The Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics provides that any transaction or relationship that is approved as described in this
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paragraph is in compliance with the Code and that approval as described in this paragraph is not to be

regarded as waiver of the Code

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics specifically provides that we may engage in

transactions of various types with Mr Roberts Roberts Properties and/or other affiliates of Mr Roberts to

develop or acquire real estate so long as the transaction or agreement complies with the policy described

above We followed these policies in approving the transactions and agreements described in this Item

13

Determination of Director Independence

We have established an Audit Committee Nominating and Governance Committee and

Compensation Committee Our Audit Committee is composed of Mr Jones Chairman and Mr Davis

Our board of directors has determined that each member of the Committee is independent under the

SECs Rule 1OA-3 and Section 803A of the NYSE Alternext US listing standards Our Compensation

Committee is composed of Mr Jones Chairman and Mr Davis and our Nominating and Governance

Committee is composed of Mr Jones Chairman and Mr Spalding Our board of directors has

determined that each of Mr Davis Mr Jones and Mr Spalding is independent within the meaning of

Section 803A of the NYSE Alternext US listing standards There were no transactions relationships or

arrangements not disclosed in this Item 13 pursuant to Item 404a of Regulation S-K that our board

considered in making the determinations of independence described in this paragraph
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ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Reznick Group Reznick is our independent registered public accounting firm

Audit Fees

For 2007

The aggregate fees billed by Reznick for professional services rendered for the audit of our

annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 and for the review of the

financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form l0-Q during 2007 were $155500

For 2008

The aggregate fees billed by Reznick for professional services rendered for the audit of our

annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and for the review of the

financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during 2008 were $144000

Audit-Related Fees

We did not engage Reznick to provide and Reznick did not bill us for professional services that

were reasonably related to the performance of the audit of our 2007 or 2008 financial statements but

which are not reported in the previous paragraph

Tax Fees

For 2007

The aggregate fees billed by Reznick for professional services rendered related to tax compliance

tax advice and tax planning for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 were $12000

For 2008

The aggregate fees billed by Reznick for professional services rendered related to tax compliance

tax advice and tax planning for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 were $78025

All Other Fees

Reznick did not bill us for any services for the fiscal years ended December 31 2007 and

December 31 2008 other than for the services described above

Pre-Approval Policy

Our audit committee pre-approval guidelines with respect to pre-approval of audit and non-audit

services are summarized below

General The audit committee is required to pre-approve the audit and non-audit services

performed by the independent auditor in order to assure that the provision of such services does not

impair the auditors independence Unless type of service to be provided by the independent auditor has

received general pre-approval it will require specific pre-approval by the audit committee Any proposed

services exceeding pre-approved cost levels requires specific pre-approval by the audit committee
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Audit Services The annual audit services engagement terms and fees are subject to the specific

pre-approval of the audit committee In addition to the annual audit services engagement specifically

approved by the audit committee the audit committee has granted general pre-approval for other audit

services which are those services that only the independent auditor reasonably can provide

Audit-related Services Audit-related services are assurance and related services that are

reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and that are

traditionally performed by the independent auditor The audit committee believes that the provision of
audit-related services does not impair the independence of the auditor

Tax Services The audit committee believes that the independent auditor can provide tax services

to us such as tax compliance tax planning and tax advice without impairing the auditors independence
The audit committee will not permit the retention of the independent auditor in connection with
transaction initially recommended by the independent auditor the purpose of which may be tax avoidance
and the tax treatment of which may not be supported in the Internal Revenue Code and related

regulations

All Other Services The audit committee has granted pre-approval to those permissible non-audit
services classified as all other services that it believes are routine and recurring services and would not

impair the independence of the auditor

Pre-Approval Fee Levels To facilitate managements day-to-day conduct of our business the

audit committee deemed it advisable and in our best interests to permit certain routine non-audit services

without the necessity of pre-approval by the audit committee Therefore the audit committee expects to
establish pre-approval fee level per engagement Any proposal for services exceeding this level will

require specific pre-approval by the audit committee Although management may engage non-audit
services from our independent auditor within this limit management cannot enter into any engagement
that would violate the SECs rules and regulations related to auditor independence These non-audit
service engagements are to be reported to the audit committee as promptly as practicable
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

and Financial Statements and Schedules

The financial statements listed below are filed as part of this annual report on the pages indicated

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM F-i

CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets
F-2

Consolidated Statements of Operations
F-3

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity
F-4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6

64



a3 Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

We have filed some of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K with previous

registration statements or reports As specifically noted in the following Index to Exhibits those

previously filed exhibits are incorporated into this annual report on Form 10-K by reference All exhibits

contained in the following Index to Exhibits that are designated with an asterisk are incorporated into this

annual report by reference in our initial Registration Statement on Form 10-SB filed with the SEC on

March 22 1996 the applicable exhibit number in that Registration Statement is provided beside the

asterisk The exhibits listed from Exhibit 10.1.1 through Exhibit 10.9.2 are management contracts or

compensatory plans or arrangements

We will provide copy of any or all of the following exhibits to any shareholder who requests

them for cost often cents per page

Exhibit No Description

Articles of Incorporation Bylaws and Certficates and Articles of Merger

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Roberts Realty Investors Inc filed with

the Georgia Secretary of State on July 22 2004 by reference to Exhibit 3.1

in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2004

3.2 Bylaws of Roberts Realty Investors Inc 2.2

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Roberts Realty Investors Inc by reference

to Exhibit 3.1 in our current report on Form 8-K dated February 2008

4.1 Agreement of Limited Partnership of Roberts Properties Residential L.P dated as of July

22 1994 3.1

4.1.1 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Roberts Properties

Residential L.P dated as of October 1994 as amended 3.1.1

4.1.2 Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Roberts Properties Residential L.P dated as of October 13 1994 3.1.2

4.1.3 Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Roberts Properties Residential L.P by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our

Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed July 1999 registration number 33-82453

4.2 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Roberts Properties Residential L.P filed with the

Georgia Secretary of State on July 22 1994 3.2

4.2.1 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on October 13 1994

merging Roberts Properties River Oaks L.P Roberts Properties Rosewood Plantation

L.P Roberts Properties Preston Oaks L.P and Roberts Properties Highland Park L.P
with and into Roberts Properties Residential L.P 1994 Consolidation 3.2.1

4.2.2 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on March 24 1995 merging

Roberts Properties Holcomb Bridge L.P with and into Roberts Properties Residential L.P

Holcomb Bridge Merger 3.2.2

4.2.3 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on May 16 1995 merging

Roberts Properties Plantation Trace L.P with and into Roberts Properties Residential L.P

Plantation Trace Merger 3.2.3
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Exhibit No Description

4.2.4 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on September 27 1995

merging Roberts Properties-St Simons L.P with and into Roberts Properties Residential

L.P Windsong Merger 3.2.4

4.2.5 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on March 21 1996 merging

Roberts Properties Bentley Place L.P with and into Roberts Properties Residential L.P

Bentley Place Merger by reference to Exhibit 4.2.5 in our quarterly report

on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30 1996

4.2.6 Certificate of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on June 26 1996 merging

The Crestmark Club L.P with and into Roberts Properties Residential L.P Crestmark

Merger by reference to Exhibit 4.2.6 in our quarterly report on Form 10-

QSB for the quarter ended June 30 1996

4.2.7 Certificate and Articles of Merger filed with the Georgia Secretary of State on April 1997

merging Roberts Properties Management L.L.C with and into Roberts Properties

Residential L.P by reference to Exhibit 4.2.7 in our current report on Form

8-K dated April 1997

Material Agreements with Affiliates

Corporate Office Building

10.1.1 Construction Administration Agreement between Roberts Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Inc Corporate Office Building by reference to Exhibit 10.20.5

in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30 2001

10.1.2 Office Lease between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts Properties Inc

dated March 27 2006 by reference to Exhibit 10.4 in our quarterly report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2006

10.1.3 Office Lease between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts Properties

Construction Inc dated March 27 2006 by reference to Exhibit 10.3 in our

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31 2006

10.1.4 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc dated March 21 2007 by reference to Exhibit

10.1 in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31 2007

10.1.5 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Inc dated March 21 2007 by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31 2007

10.1.6 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc dated January 18 2008 by reference to Exhibit

10.1.6 in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

10.1.7 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Inc dated January 18 2008 by reference to Exhibit 10.1.7 in our

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

10.1.8 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Inc dated January 30 2009
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Exhibit No Description

10.1.9 Lease renewal agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc dated January 30 2009

Addison Place Shops

10.2.1 Construction Administration Agreement between Roberts Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Inc Addison Place Shops by reference to Exhibit 10.21.3 in our

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2001

10.2.2 Construction Agreement by and between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc dated May 11 2007 Addison Place Shops by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form 8-K dated May 11 2007

Northridge

10.3.1 Design and Development Agreement between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and

Roberts Properties Inc dated June 15 2001 Northridge by reference to

Exhibit 10.1.17 in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001

10.3.2 Construction Agreement between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts

Properties Construction Inc Northridge by reference to Exhibit 10.1.18 in

our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2003

Peachtree Parkway

10.4.1 Tenants-In-Common Agreement between Georgianna Jean Valentino and Roberts

Properties Peachtree Parkway L.P assumed by Roberts Properties Residential L.P on

December 29 2004 by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on

Form8-K dated January 2005

10.4.2 Restrictive Covenant by Roberts Properties Peachtree Parkway L.P assumed by Roberts

Properties Residential L.P on December 29 2004 by reference to Exhibit

10.3 in our current report on Form 8-K dated January 2005

10.4.3 Design and Development Agreement among Roberts Properties Residential L.P
Georgianna Jean Valentino and Roberts Properties Inc for the Peachtree Parkway

property dated as of April 14 2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our

current report on Form 8-K dated April 12 2005

10.4.4 Amendment Number to Design and Development Agreement between Roberts Properties

Residential L.P and Roberts Properties Inc dated as of December 2006 Peachtree

Parkway by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form 8-K

dated December 2006

10.4.5 Construction Contract among Roberts Properties Residential L.P Georgianna Jean

Valentino and Roberts Properties Construction Inc for the Peachtree Parkway property

dated as of April 14 2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.3 in our current report

on Form 8-K dated April 12 2005

10.4.6 Amendment Number to Construction Contract between Roberts Properties Residential

L.P and Roberts Properties Construction Inc dated as of December 2006 Peachtree

Parkway by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K

dated December 2006
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Exhibit No Description

North Springs formerly Peachtree Dunwoody

10.5.1 Restrictive Covenant by Roberts Properties Peachtree Dunwoody LLC assumed by

Roberts Properties Residential L.P on January 20 2005 by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K dated January 21 2005

10.5.2 Design and Development Agreement between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and

Roberts Properties Inc for the North Springs formerly Peachtree Dunwoody property

dated as of April 14 2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report

on Form 8-K dated April 12 2005

10.5.3 Construction Contract between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts Properties

Construction Inc for the North Springs formerly Peachtree Dunwoody property dated as

of April 14 2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.4 in our current report on

Form 8-K dated April 12 2005

Sawmill Village

10.6.1 Design and Development Agreement between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and

Roberts Properties Inc for the Sawmill property in Cumming Georgia dated as of August

2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form 8-K dated

August 2005

10.6.2 Construction Contract between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts Properties

Construction Inc for the Sawmill property in Cumming Georgia dated as of August

2005 by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K dated

August 2005

Highway 20

10.7.1 Design and Development Agreement between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and

Roberts Properties Inc for the Highway 20 property in Cumming Georgia dated as of

February 21 2006 by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form

8-K dated February 21 2006

10.7.2 Construction Contract between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and Roberts Properties

Construction Inc for the Highway 20 property in Cumming Georgia dated as of February

21 2006 by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K

dated February 21 2006

Compensation Agreements and Arrangements and Restricted Stock Plan

10.8.1 Determination of annual base salary for 2006 effective January 2006 for Charles

Roberts the registrants President and Chief Executive Officer by reference

to Item 1.01 in our current report on Form 8-K dated May 16 2006

10.8.2 Determination of compensation arrangements for the interim Chief Financial Officer of

Roberts Realty Investors Inc by reference to Item 5.02 in our current report

on Form 8-K dated May 31 2006

10.8.3 2006 Roberts Realty Investors Inc Restricted Stock Plan by reference to

Annex to the registrants definitive proxy statement filed July 20 2006
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Exhibit No Description

10.8.4 Revised Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement supersedes the form of restricted

stock award agreement attached as Exhibit to Annex to our proxy statement for our

2006 annual meeting filed with the SEC on July 20 2006 by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 in our quarterly report on Form l0-Q for the
quarter ended March 31 2007

10.8.5 Restricted Stock Award Agreement between Roberts Realty Investors Inc and Charles

Elliott dated February 28 2007 by reference to Exhibit 10.4 in our quarterly

report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2007

10.8.6 Compensation arrangement for Wm Jarell Jones effective February 2008

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K dated February 2008

10.8.7 Modification of compensation arrangement for Wm Jarell Jones effective July 2008

by reference to Item 1.02 in our current report on Form 8-K dated August 22

2008

10.8.8 2006 Roberts Realty Investors Inc Restricted Stock Plan as amended effective January 27
2009 by reference to Exhibit 4.1 in the companys post-effective amendment

to its Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on January 29 2009

Other Agreements with Affiliates

10.9.1 Reimbursement arrangement approved and ratified on February 15 2005 between the

registrant and Roberts Properties Inc wholly owned affiliate of Charles Roberts the

registrants Chief Executive Officer President and Chairman of the Board of Directors for

the use of an aircraft owned by Roberts Properties Inc by reference to Item

1.01 in our current report on Form 8-K dated February 15 2005

10.9.2 Reimbursement arrangement between Roberts Realty Investors Inc and Roberts Properties

Inc effective February 2008 by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current

report on Form 8-K dated February 2008

Addison Place Financing and Sale Related Documents

10.10.1 Promissory Note executed by Roberts Properties Residential L.P in favor of The Prudential

Insurance Company of America dated October 25 1999 in the original principal amount of

$9500000 Addison Place Townhomes by reference to Exhibit 10.14.04 in

our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1999

10.10.2 Deed to Secure Debt and Security Agreement executed by Roberts Properties Residential

L.P in favor of The Prudential Insurance Company of America dated October 25 1999
and related collateral documents Addison Place Townhomes by reference

to Exhibit 10.14.05 in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

1999

10.10.3 Guaranty executed by Roberts Realty Investors Inc in favor of The Prudential Insurance

Company of America dated October 25 1999 Addison Place Townhomes
by reference to Exhibit 10.14.06 in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1999

10.10.4 Multifamily Note in the principal amount of $21000000 dated April 19 2005 executed by
Roberts Properties Residential L.P in favor of Primary Capital Advisors LC Addison
Place Apartments by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on

Form8-K dated April 19 2005
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Exhibit No Description

10.10.5 Multifamily Deed to Secure Debt Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement dated

April 19 2005 made by Roberts Properties Residential L.P in favor of Primary Capital

Advisors LC Addison Place Apartments by reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our

current report on Form 8-K dated April 19 2005

10.10.6 Guaranty dated April 19 2005 made by Roberts Realty Investors Inc in favor of Primary

Capital Advisors LC Addison Place Apartments by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 in our current report on Form 8-K dated April 19 2005

10.10.7 Sales Contract dated April 16 2008 between Roberts Properties Residential L.P and The

Connor Group Real Estate Investment Firm LLC by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form 8-K dated April 16 2008

Peachtree Parkway North Springs formerly Peachtree Dunwoody Highway 20

Financing Documents

10.11.1 Promissory Note in the principal amount of $8175000 dated December 2006 executed

by Roberts Properties Residential L.P in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

Peachtree Parkway by reference to Exhibit 10.3 in our current report on

Form 8-K dated December 2006

10.11.2 Deed to Secure Debt and Assignment of Rents dated December 2006 executed by

Roberts Properties Residential L.P in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

Peachtree Parkway by reference to Exhibit 10.4 in our current report on

Form 8-K dated December 2006

10.11.3 Unconditional Guaranty dated December 2006 executed by Roberts Realty Investors

Inc in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association Peachtree Parkway

by reference to Exhibit 10.5 in our current report on Form 8-K dated December 2006

10.11.4 Second Consolidated Amendatory Agreement and Agreement Regarding Cross-Default and

Cross-Collateralization of Loans dated April 28 2008 by and between Roberts Properties

Residential L.P and Wachovia Bank National Association Peachtree Parkway

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 in our current report on Form 8-K dated April 28

2008

10.11.5 Third Consolidated Amendatory Agreement and Agreement Regarding Cross-Default and

Cross-Collateralization of Loans dated April 28 2008 by and between Roberts Properties

Residential L.P and Wachovia Bank National Association Highway 20 by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 in our current report on Form 8-K dated April 28 2008

10.11.6 Deed to Secure Debt and Assignment of Rents dated April 28 2008 executed by Roberts

Properties Residential L.P in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association North

Springs by reference to Exhibit 10.3 in our current report on Form 8-K dated

April 28 2008

Other Exhibits

21 Subsidiaries of Roberts Realty Investors Inc

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Reznick Group P.C

24 Power of Attorney contained on the signature page hereof
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Exhibit No Description

31 Certifications of Charles Roberts and Charles Elliott pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certifications of Charles Roberts and Charles Elliott pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 This exhibit is not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 but is instead furnished as provided by applicable rules of

the Securities and Exchange Commission
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC

By /s/ Charles Roberts

Charles Roberts Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Officer and President

Date March 30 2009

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears

below constitutes and appoints jointly and severally Charles Roberts and Charles Elliott and each

one of them his attorneys-in-fact each with the power of substitution for him in any and all capacities to

sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report Form 10-K and to file the same with exhibits

thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission

hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said attorneys-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may do

or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been

signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title Date

/s/ Charles Roberts Chairman of the Board Chief

Charles Roberts Executive Officer and President March 30 2009

/s/ Charles Elliott Secretary Treasurer Chief March 30 2009

Charles Elliott Financial Officer Principal Financial

Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer and Director

Is John Davis Director March 30 2009

John Davis

Is Wm Jarell Jones Director March 30 2009

Wm Jarell Jones

Is Ben Spalding Director March 30 2009

Ben Spalding
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Notes to Financial Highlights

See Note for an explanation of how we calculate Net Operating Income and why we believe it

provides useful information to investors All amounts below are in thousands

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to Net Income Loss

2008 2007

Total operating revenues 2600 2455

Property operating expenses 1267 1202

Net operating income 1333 1253

Interest expense 1442 2518
General and administrative expenses 1823 1681
Depreciation and amortization expense 1308 1343
Interest income 299 137

Legal settlement 78

Amortization of deferred financing and leasing costs 202 151
Bad debt expense 142
Write-off of fair value/market value of leases net 31 46
Loss on disposal of assets

Impairment loss on real estate 2555
Minority interest of unitholders 1381 1009
Income loss from discontinued operations net of

minority interest of unitholders 22111 147

Net income loss 17.62 3411

Footnotes

Property operating expenses are comprised of personnel utilities real estate taxes insurance

maintenance landscaping marketing and property administration expenses

Net operating income is equal to total property operating revenues minus property operating

expenses Net operating income is widely recognized term in the real estate industry and we
believe it provides useful information to investors regarding our results of operations because it

explains the contribution of our rental operations to our overall financial results
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Roberts Realty Investors Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Roberts Realty Investors Inc Georgia

corporation and its subsidiary together the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related

consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31 2008 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys
management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we
engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of

internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Roberts Realty Investors Inc and its subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and 2007
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

/s/ Reznick Group P.C

Atlanta Georgia

March 30 2009
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ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

REAL ESTATE ASSETS At cost

Land

Buildings and improvements

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Operating real estate assets

Construction in progress and real estate under development

Land held for investment

Property held for sale net

Net real estate assets

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RESTRICTED CASH

DEFERRED FINANCING LEASING COSTS Net of accumulated amortization

of $570894 and $373318 at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

FAIR VALUE OF LEASES Net of accumulated amortization

of $465087 and $398697 at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

OTHER ASSETS Net

Other assets net related to discontinued operations

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Mortgage notes payable

Construction notes payable

Land notes payable

Line of credit payable

Insurance premium note payable

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Due to affiliates

Security deposits and prepaid rents

Distribution payable

Mortgage notes accounts payable and accrued expenses related to discontinued operations

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Note

MINORITY INTEREST OF UNITHOLDERS IN THE OPERATING PARTNERSHIP

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred shares $01 par value 20000000 shares authorized no shares issued and outstanding

Common shares $01 par value 100000000 shares authorized 10086769 and 9773642 shares

issued and outstanding at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares at cost

Retained earnings

Total shareholders equity

374.955

14526170

10076030

22067000

400000

90073

655701 783923

52878 210235

141550 171535

2362909
23.781 29.357559

47945839 77682.25

See notes to the consolidated financial statements

December 31

2008

11375734

25521272

619.18

37516187

3861074
33655113

52305712

9009124

December 31
2007

11116360

27598225

339286

3905387

2740021
36313850

49487604

9009124
30107548

94969949 124918126

16454995 603873

925521 326410

316124 297514

322954 519364

368020 410750

$113357563 $127450992

14292020

9165000

21252000

12585216 11715497

100868 58125

30389994 27590845

15886
22.35 1532 10.404.000

52826508 38052970

$113357563 $127.450992
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ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007

OPERATiNG REVENUES
Rental operations 2246946 2088160
Other operating income 352.568 366.377

Total operating revenues 2599514 2454537

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 53550 56748
Utilities 213873 193508

Repairs maintenance and landscaping 175663 155474
Real estate taxes 725885 712938

Marketing insurance and other 98520 83672
General and administrative expenses 1822665 1680955

Baddebtexpense 141640 2130
Write-off of fair value/market value of leases net 30846 45598

Impairment loss on real estate 2555000

Depreciation and amortization expense 1.307590 1.343009

Total operating expenses 7125232 4274032

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 4525718 1819495

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
Interest income 299200 137160
Interest expense 1442076 2518355
Legal settlement 78000
Amortization of deferred financing and leasing costs 202.3 76 151225

Total other expense 1.345252 2454420

LOSS FROM CONTiNUING OPERATIONS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 5870970 4273915

MINORITY INTEREST OF UINITHOLDERS IN THE OPERATING PARTNERSHIP 1.38 1439 1009071

LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 4489531 3264844

INCOME LOSS FROM DISCONTiNUED OPERATIONS net of minority interest 22110.875 146.631
of unitholders in the operating partnership Note

NET INCOME LOSS 17.62 1344 3.411.475

INCOME LOSS PER COMMON SHARE BASIC AND DILUTED Note

Loss from continuing operations-basic 0.46 0.33
Income loss from discontinued operations-basic 2.27 0.02
Net income loss-basic 1.81 0.35

Loss from continuing operations-diluted 0.47 0.34
Income loss from discontinued operations-diluted 2.31 0.02

Net income loss-diluted 1.84 0.36

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Shares

Total

Number of Share-

Shares Paid-In Treasury Retained holders

Issued Amount Capital Shares Earnings

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2006 5777458 57775 $27424751 $13815475 $41298001

Comprehensive income

Netloss 3411475 3.41L415

Total comprehensive income 3411.475

Conversion of units to shares 10005 100 75595 75695

Restricted shares issued to employees

net of forfeitures 25000 250 250
Amortization of deferred compensation 73818 73818

Adjustment for minority interest in

the operating partnership ________ ______
16.931 _______ ___________

16931

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2007 5812463 $58125 $27590845 $10404000 $38052970

Comprehensive income

Net income 17621344 17621344

Total comprehensive income
17621344

Purchase of Treasury Shares 15886 15886

Distributions declared 3754732 37547 5673812 5636265

Conversion of units to shares 537422 5375 421625 427000

Restricted shares issued to employees

net of forfeitures 17848 179 36659 36838

Amortization of deferred compensation 21001 21001

Adjustment for minority interest in

the operating partnership ________ _______
2.39i82 _______ __________

2.393182

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2008 iQQ6.769 $100868 $3Q59994 $i5j $2235 1.532 $52826508

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income loss $17621344 $3411475
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities

Income loss from discontinued operations net of minority interest 22110875 146631

Minority interest of unitholders in the operating partnership 1381439 1009071
Depreciation and amortization 1499165 1569493
Amortization of above and below market leases 26375 84560

Amortization of deferred compensation 21001 73818
Write-off of fair value/market value of leases net 30846 45598

Impairment loss on real estate 2555000

Forfeiture of restricted stock 36838
Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in other assets 1383 14934
Decrease increase in security deposits and prepaid rent 29985 69359

Decrease increase in due to affiliates 123973 116846
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities relating to operations 229.294 40114

Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations 1698702 2289061
Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations 605600 12 19799

Net cash used in operating activities 1093102 1.069.262

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment of leasing costs 34087 54593
Increase in restricted cash 599111 48180
Decrease increase in accounts payable and other liabilities relating to investing 357516 50000

Decrease Increase in due to affiliates 33385 79317

Development and construction of real estate assets 3835423 2267866

Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations 4859522 2241322
Net cash provided by used in investing activities from discontinued operations 58477.108 48513

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 53617586 2.289835

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal repayments on mortgage notes payable 234150 222837
Payment of loan costs 182099 73999
Repayment of construction note payable 911030 133333
Repayment of land notes payable 815000
Repayment of insurance premium note payable 90073 19375
Repayment Draw of line of credit 400000 400000

Purchase of Treasury Stock 15886
Payment of distribution to shareholders and unitholders 5.005586

Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations 7653824 49544
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations 29.019.538 395.961

Net cash used in financing activities 36.673.362 445.505

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15851122 3804602

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR 603873 4.408475

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF YEAR 16.454.995 603873

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest of $1193766 and $691461

for 2008 and 2007 respectively $2449.23 $4.3 50.870

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Development and construction of real estate assets due to but not paid to affiliates $45.932 $79.3 17

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

Roberts Realty Investors Inc Roberts Realty Georgia corporation was formed July 22

1994 to serve as vehicle for investments in and ownership of professionally managed real

estate portfolio consisting of multifamily residential communities and commercial properties

Roberts Realty owns and manages its real estate assets as self-administered self-managed

equity real estate investment trust REIT

Roberts Realty conducts all of its operations and owns all of its assets in and through Roberts

Properties Residential L.P Georgia limited partnership the operating partnership or its

three wholly owned subsidiaries each of which is Georgia limited liability company Roberts

Realty is the sole general partner of the operating partnership Roberts Realty had an 80.76%

ownership interest in the operating partnership at December 31 2008 and 76.46% ownership

interest in the operating partnership at December 31 2007 As the sole general partner and owner

of majority interest of the operating partnership Roberts Realty controls the operating

partnership

At December 31 2008 Roberts Realty owned the following real estate assets all of which are

located in the north Atlanta metropolitan area

four neighborhood retail centers totaling 156615 square feet

one commercial office building totaling 37864 square feet part of which serves as

Roberts Realtys corporate headquarters

five tracts of undeveloped land totaling 104 acres in various phases of development and

construction and

44-acre tract of land that is held for investment

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the

consolidated accounts of Roberts Realty and the operating partnership All significant inter

company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation The financial

statements of Roberts Realty have been adjusted for the minority interest of the unitholders in the

operating partnership

The minority interest of the unitholders in the operating partnership on the accompanying balance

sheets is calculated by multiplying the minority interest ownership percentage at the balance sheet

date by the operating partnerships net assets total assets less total liabilities The minority

interest ownership percentage is calculated by dividing the number of units outstanding by the

combined total of shares and units outstanding at specific point in time The minority interest

ownership percentage will change as additional shares andlor units are issued or as units are

redeemed for shares of Roberts Realty The minority interest of the unitholders in the earnings or

loss of the operating partnership on the accompanying statements of operations is calculated

based on the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period which was 23.53%

and 23.61% for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The minority interest

of the unitholders was $12585216 and $11715497 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Holders of operating partnership units generally have the right to require the operating

partnership to redeem their units for shares of Roberts Realty Upon submittal of units for

redemption the operating partnership has the option either to acquire those units in exchange
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for shares on 1.647 to one basis see Note Shareholders Equity Special Cash and Stock

Distributions Declared in December 2008 and Paid in January 2009 or to pay cash for those

units at their fair market value based upon the then current trading price of the shares Roberts

Realty has adopted policy that it will issue shares in exchange for all future units submitted for

redemption

In January 2003 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB

Interpretation No 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities FIN 46R which was

subsequently revised in December 2003 Roberts Realty adopted FIN 46R in January 2004 at

which time it determined that it had no variable interest entities nor does Roberts Realty have

any variable interest entities at December 31 2008

Certain reclassifications of prior years balances have been made to conform to the current

format

Real Estate Assets and Depreciation Real estate assets are recorded at depreciated cost less

reductions for impairment if any Roberts Realty evaluates the carrying value of its real estate

assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 144

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets In identifying potential impairment

management considers such factors as declines in propertys operating performance or market

value change in use and adverse changes in general market conditions In determining

whether an asset is impaired management estimates the future cash flows expected to be

generated from both the assets use and its eventual disposition If the sum of these estimated

future cash flows on an undiscounted basis is less than the assets carrying cost the asset is

written down to its fair value

Real assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that

their carrying value may not be recoverable An impairment would be recognized when the sum

of expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the property The expected

cash flows of an operating property are dependent on estimates made by management including

changes in the national regional and/or local economic climates competition

operating costs tenant occupancy and holding period change in the assumptions

used to determine future economic events could result in an adverse change in the value of

property and cause an impairment to be recorded Due to uncertainties in the estimation process

actual results could differ from such estimates Roberts Realtys determination of fair value is

based primarily on probability-weighted discounted future cash flow analysis which

incorporates available market information as well as other assumptions made by management
For both the Northridge office building and the Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail center

Roberts Realty estimated lower lease rates and occupancy rates in the cash flow assumptions due

to market and economic conditions As result Roberts Realty recorded $1255000 non-cash

impairment loss on the Northridge office building at September 30 2008 and $1300000 non-

cash impairment loss on the Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail center at December 31 2008

The purchase price of acquired real estate assets is allocated to land building and intangible

assets in accordance with SFAS No 141 Accounting for Business Combinations Roberts

Realty allocates the purchase price of an acquired asset based on the relative fair values of the

land building and intangible assets For tangible assets classified as real estate assets the values

are determined as though the land was undeveloped and the buildings were vacant Intangible

assets typically consist of above or below market leases customer relationships and the value of

in-place leases The fair value of any above or below market leases is amortized into operating

revenues over the terms of the respective leases The combined net value of above and below

market leases acquired net of accumulated amortization was $28677 and $5028 and the

unamortized remaining values are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets at
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December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The value of in-place leases is amortized over the

term of the respective lease Intangible assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for

potential impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not

be recoverable and are tested at least annually During 2008 Roberts Realty determined that

based on estimated future cash flows the carrying amount of the fair value of the leases relating

to the Retail/Office segment exceeded its fair value by $30846 Accordingly an impairment loss

of that amount was recognized and is included in the write-off of fair value/market value of leases

net in the statement of operations

Expenditures directly related to the development acquisition and improvement of real estate

assets are capitalized at cost as land buildings and improvements During the construction

period interest expense real estate taxes and insurance are capitalized Interest expense is

capitalized on qualifiing assets during construction using weighted average interest rate for all

indebtedness Interest capitalized for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was

$1193766 and $691461 respectively Leasing costs including commissions and legal costs

are capitalized and amortized over the term of the lease Ordinary repairs and maintenance are

expensed as incurred Major replacements and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over

their estimated useful lives buildings are generally depreciated over 27.5 years land

improvements are depreciated over 15 years and furniture fixtures and equipment are

depreciated over to years The amortization of the value of the in-place leases leasing costs

and any tenant improvement allowance is included in the depreciation and amortization expense

on the operating statement with the operating real estate depreciable assets

Roberts Realty recognizes gains on sales of assets in accordance with SFAS No 66 Accounting

for Sales of Real Estate If any significant continuing obligation exists at the date of the sale

Roberts Realty defers portion of the gain attributable to the continuing obligation until the

continuing obligation has expired or is removed There were no such continuing obligations on

the sales of Roberts Realtys assets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Cash and Cash Equivalents Roberts Realty considers all highly liquid investments with

maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents Roberts Realty

maintains cash and cash equivalent balances with financial institutions that exceed federally

insured limits Roberts Realty has not experienced any losses related to these balances and

management believes its credit risk is minimal

Restricted Cash Restricted cash consists of multifamily retail and office security deposits and

lender escrows held by third parties

Deferred Financing Costs Deferred financing costs include fees and costs incurred to obtain

financings and are amortized on the straight-line method over the terms of the related debt

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

effective-yield method be used to amortize financing costs however the effect of using the

straight-line method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained

using the effective-yield method Amortization of deferred financing costs was $195417 and

$170000 for the years ending December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Revenue Recognition Roberts Realty leases its multifamily properties under operating leases

with terms generally one year or less Commercial leases for Roberts Realtys retail and office

properties generally have terms of three to five years with options to renew for an additional

three to five years Roberts Realty recognizes revenue for reimbursements from retail tenants of

operating expenses consisting primarily of real estate taxes property insurance and various

common area expenses such as electricity water and sewer and trash removal Rental income

from multifamily properties is recognized when collected and rental income from retail and

F-8



office properties is recognized when earned which materially approximates revenue recognition

on straight-line basis At December 31 2008 future minimum rentals to be received by

Roberts Realty under its retail and office leases excluding reimbursements for operating

expenses are as follows

Amount

2009 $1751569

2010 1386848

2011 1238147

2012 980340

2013 391647

Thereafter 448932

Total $6197483

Income Taxes Roberts Realty elected to be taxed as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of

1986 as amended the Code commencing with the taxable year ended December 31 1994

As result Roberts Realty generally will not be subject to federal and state income taxation at the

corporate level to the extent it distributes each year at least 90% of its taxable income as defined

in the Code to its shareholders and satisfies certain other requirements As long as Roberts

Realty continues to maintain its qualification as REIT it generally will not be subject to federal

income tax on distributed net income in the future Accordingly no provision has been made for

federal and state income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

reconciliation of Roberts Realtys net income loss to its taxable loss for the years ending

December 31 2008 and 2007 is shown below

2008 2007

Net income loss 17621344 3411475

Adjustments to net income

Gains from sale of real estate assets 1123656

Depreciation 213000 292000

Amortization of intangibles 224000

Prepaid rents 83000 72000

Unearned compensation 2000 56000

Interest Expense 912000
Bad Debt 5000
Section 754 Deduction 487000
Meals and Entertainment 1000

Impairment Loss 1953000

Fair Market Value of Leases 23000

Fair Market Value of Leases 1000
Other 9525

Taxable income loss before

NOL and DPD $19023000 2777000

Dividends paid deduction 12607000
Net operating loss carryforward 6416.000

Taxable loss
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Tax Status of Distributions On June 24 2008 Roberts Realtys board of directors declared

special distribution of $5005586 or $0.66 per share/unit to the shareholders and unitholders of

record on July 10 2008 On August 2008 Roberts Realty paid total of $3824446 to

shareholders and $1181140 to unitholders On December 18 2008 Roberts Realtys board of

directors declared special distribution of $9058000 or $l.5 per share On January 29 2009

Roberts Realty made to shareholders of record at the close of business on December 29 2008

distribution in combination of 20% in cash or $0.31 per share $1811819 in total and 80% in

its common stock equal to $1.25 per share 3754732 shares in total valued at an aggregate

amount of $7246633 Unitholders received $0.31 per share in cash $551090 in total and are

now entitled to receive 1.647 shares for each unit submitted for conversion Of the dividends

paid Roberts Realty designated the percentage of the total dividends outlined in the table below

as the following types of income

2008

Long-term capital gains 65.5%

Unrecaptured section 1250 gains 34.5%

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the periods presented Diluted earnings per share is

calculated to reflect the potential dilution of all instruments or securities that are convertible into

shares of common stock For Roberts Realty this includes the shares that are issuable in

exchange for units that are outstanding during the periods presented

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities the disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS 160 SFAS 160

amends Accounting Research Bulletin 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the

non-controlling interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary It clarifies

that non-controlling interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity

that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements SFAS 160 requires

consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to the

parent and to the non-controlling interest The provisions of SFAS 160 are effective for fiscal

years beginning after November 15 2008 including interim periods beginning January 2009

The adoption of SFAS 160 is not expected to have material effect on Roberts Realtys

consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 14 1R Business Combinations

SFAS No 141R which changes how business acquisitions are accounted for and will

impact financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods

SFAS No 141R requires the acquiring entity in business combination to recognize all and

only the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction and establishes the acquisition

date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in

business combination Certain provisions of this standard will among other things impact the

determination of acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid in business combination

F- 10



including contingent consideration exclude transaction costs from acquisition accounting and

change accounting practices for acquired contingencies acquisition-related restructuring costs

and tax benefits This Statement applies prospectively to business combinations for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or

after December 15 2008 Roberts Realty is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No 14 1R
on its consolidated financial statements

On January 2008 Roberts Realty adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements for

financial assets and liabilities SFAS No 157 defines fair value as the price that would be

received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date Depending on the nature of the asset or liability

Roberts Realty uses various valuation techniques and assumptions when estimating fair value In

accordance with SFAS No 157 Roberts Realty applies the following fair value hierarchy

Level Assets or liabilities for which the identical item is traded on an active

exchange such as publicly-traded instruments or futures contracts

Level Assets and liabilities valued based on observable market data for similar

instruments

Level Assets or liabilities for which significant valuation assumptions are not readily

observable in the market instruments valued based on the best available data some of

which is internally-developed and considers risk premiums that market participant

would require

When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to

be recorded at and/or marked to fair value Roberts Realty considers the principal or most

advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability When possible Roberts Realty looks to

active and observable markets to price identical assets or liabilities When identical assets and

liabilities are not traded in active markets Roberts Realty looks to market observable data for

similar assets and liabilities Nevertheless certain assets and liabilities are not actively traded in

observable markets and Roberts Realty must use alternative valuation techniques to derive fair

value measurement The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents restricted cash and

accounts receivable and payable included in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31

2008 approximate their fair values See Note for additional discussion of the fair value for

fixed rate mortgage debt The adoption of SFAS No 157 did not have material impact on

Roberts Realtys consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115

SFAS No 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other

items at fair The provisions of SFAS No 159 are effective for financial statements issued for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 On January 2008 Roberts Realty adopted

SFAS No 159 and elected not to apply the provisions of SFAS No 159 to its eligible financial

assets and liabilities on the date of adoption Accordingly the initial application of SFAS No
159 had no effect on Roberts Realtys consolidated financial statements

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On June 24 2008 Roberts Realty sold its Addison Place apartment community for $60000000

or an average of $148883 per apartment unit resulting in gain of $28347666 of which

$6670206 is minority interest Net sales proceeds were $29654952 after deduction of
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$20271949 for mortgage note payable assumed by the buyer

$8561263 fora loan payoff

$490599 for an early termination fee and

$1021237 for closing costs and prorations

On August 2008 Roberts Realty paid special distribution of $0.66 per share/unit or

$5005586 to the shareholders and unit holders of record on July 10 2008

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Roberts Realty reports
the results of operations and gains or losses for sold properties in

accordance with SFAS No 144 Gains and losses and results of operations from sold properties

are listed separately on the Consolidated Statements of Operations Interest expense on any

property that Roberts Realty has sold along with all expenses related to the retirement of debt are

included in discontinued operations in the year incurred

In June 2007 Roberts Realty had signed letter of intent to sell its 19949 square foot Bassett

retail center Because the transaction was not consummated Roberts Realty determined that the

property did not meet the criteria outlined in SFAS 144 to be classified as held for sale and

therefore its net real estate assets and liabilities are classified as operating real estate assets and

liabilities at December 31 2008 and 2007

For the twelve months ended December 31 2008 and 2007 income from discontinued operations

consisted of the operating activities of the 403-unit Addison Place apartment community which

Roberts Realty sold on June 24 2008 The sales price for Addison Place was $60000000 which

resulted in net gain on sale of $28347666 The following table summarizes the revenue and

expenses classified as discontinued operations for the twelve months ended December 31 2008

and 2007 unaudited

F- 12



Years Ended December 31
2008 2007

OPERATING REVENUES
Rental operations $2544434 $5127287

Other operating income 170737 269719

Total operating revenues 2.715.171 5397006

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel 302565 540925

Utilities 136715 311479

Repairs maintenance and landscaping 306781 460045

Real estate taxes 287463 603547

Marketing insurance and other 140079 313033

General and administrative expenses 41137 4170

Depreciation of real estate assets 1367581

Total operating expenses 1214740 3600780

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1500431 1796226

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
Interest expense 915624 1926250

Loss on disposal of assets 24409

Amortization of deferred financing leasing costs 18029 37517

Total other expense 933653 1988176

INCOME LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND GAIN ON
SALE OF REAL ESTATE ASSET 566778 191950

MINORITY INTEREST OF UNITHOLDERS IN THE OPERATING

PARTNERSHIP 133363 45319

INCOME LOSS BEFORE GAIN ON SALE OF REAL ESTATE

ASSET 433415 146631

GAIN ON SALE OF REAL ESTATE ASSET net of minority interest

of unitholders in the operating partnership 21.677460

INCOME LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS $22110875 146.63

NOTES PAYABLE

Roberts Realty has four types of debt

mortgage notes secured by some of its operating properties

construction/permanent loans secured by other real estate assets

land loans used to purchase undeveloped land and

an unsecured revolving line of credit

The details of each of the four types of debt are summarized below For each loan the operating

partnership or its wholly owned subsidiary is the borrower and Roberts Realty is the guarantor

F- 13



Mortgage Notes The permanent mortgage notes payable secured by Roberts Realtys operating

properties at December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows in order of maturity date

Fixed

Interest

Rate as of Principal Outstanding

Property Securing Mortgage Maturity 12/31/08 12/31/08 12/31/07

Addison Place Townhomes 11/15/09 6.95% 8639477
Grand Pavilion Retail Center 07/11/13 5.43% 6625210 6742734

Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia 05/01/14 5.68% 5059141 5139752
Addison Place Apartments 05/01/15 6.35% 20380061

Bassett Retail Center 10/01/19 8.47% 2607669 2643684

Total $14292020 $43545708

Until Roberts Realty sold the Addison Place townhome community on June 24 2008 the

property secured loan that was scheduled to mature on November 15 2009 On the closing

date Roberts Realty repaid the $8561263 balance of the loan and paid an early termination fee

of $490599

Until Roberts Realty sold the Addison Place apartment community on June 24 2008 the property

secured loan that was scheduled to mature on May 2015 On the closing date the purchaser

of Addison Place assumed the $20271949 balance of the loan Neither the operating partnership

nor Roberts Realty has any further liability under the loan

On September 29 2005 Roberts Realty purchased Grand Pavilion 62323 square foot retail

center and assumed the existing mortgage from LaSalle Bank with balance of $6995000
fixed interest rate of 5.43% and maturity date of July 11 2013 The loan is secured by the

property and is being amortized over 30 years

On September 30 2005 Roberts Realty purchased Bassett Retail Center 19949 square foot

retail center and assumed the existing mortgage from LaSalle Bank with balance of $2715000

fixed interest rate of 8.47% and maturity date of October 2019 The loan is secured by the

property and is being amortized over 30 years

On October 27 2005 Roberts Realty purchased Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia 30050 square

foot retail center and assumed the existing mortgage from LaSalle Bank with balance of

$5306000 fixed interest rate of 5.68% and maturity date of May 2014 The loan is

secured by the property and is being amortized over 30 years

Construction Loans Roberts Realtys Northridge office building secures loan with principal

balance of $3165000 as of December 31 2008 On July 23 2008 Roberts Realty paid down the

principal amount of the loan by $374000 and extended the maturity date to September 10 2010

Under the extended term monthly payments consist of fixed principal amount of $13333 per

month and interest at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 200 basis points with balloon payment at

maturity of $2911667 plus accrued interest

Roberts Realtys Addison Place Shops retail center secures loan with principal balance of

$6000000 as of December 31 2008 On August 28 2008 Roberts Realty paid down the

principal amount of the loan by $363000 and extended the maturity date to April 30 2010

Under the extended term monthly payments consist of interest only at the 30-day LIBOR rate

plus 200 basis points with balloon payment at maturity of $6000000 plus accrued interest
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Land Loans Roberts Realtys Westside land secures loan with principal balance of

$6000000 as of December 31 2008 On August 28 2008 Roberts Realty paid down the

principal amount of the loan by $480000 and extended the maturity date to February 27 2010

Under the extended term monthly payments consist of interest only at the 30-day LIBOR rate

plus 200 basis points with balloon payment at maturity of $6000000 plus accrued interest

Roberts Realtys Sawmill Village land secures loan with principal balance of $3000000 as of

December 31 2008 On July 23 2008 Roberts Realty paid down the principal amount of the

loan by $335000 and extended the maturity date to February 28 2010 Under the extended term

monthly payments consist of interest only at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 175 basis points with

balloon payment at maturity of $3000000 plus accrued interest

Roberts Realtys Highway 20 land secures loan with principal balance of $4077000 as of

December 31 2008 On April 28 2008 the maturity date of this loan was extended from April

30 2008 to April 30 2009 Roberts Realtys Peachtree Parkway land secures loan from the

same lender with principal balance of $8175000 as of December 31 2008 On April 28 2008

the maturity date of the loan was extended from March 31 2008 to April 30 2009 In April

2008 to provide additional security for both the Highway 20 and Peachtree Parkway land loans

Roberts Realty granted the lender security interest in the previously unencumbered North

Springs property Under the terms of the loan extension the Peachtree Parkway loan Highway
20 loan and the additional security interest in North Springs are cross-defaulted and cross-

collateralized with one another Under the extended terms of both of these loans as of December

31 2008 monthly payments consisted of interest only at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 400 basis

points with balloon payment at maturity of the full principal balance plus accrued interest See

Note 11 Subsequent Events Loan Commitment to Refinance Loan Secured by Highway 20

Land

Line of Credit Roberts Realty has $2500000 unsecured revolving line of credit to provide

funds for short-term working capital purposes The line of credit matures on September 2009

and has an interest rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR plus 200 basis points At December 31 2008
there was no outstanding balance on the line of credit

The scheduled principal payments of all debt outstanding at December 31 2008 are as follows

2009 $12643209
2010 18270712

2011 282376

2012 297737

2013 6256980
Thereafter 6958006

Total $44.709020

At December 31 2008 the weighted average interest rate on Roberts Realtys short-term debt

scheduled principal payments during 2009 as shown in the above table was 5.84% The amount

of interest expense that was capitalized was $1193766 and $691646 for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Fixed rate mortgage debt with an aggregate carrying

value of $14292020 at December 31 2008 has an estimated approximate fair value of

$13895571 based on interest rates available to Roberts Realty for debt with similar terms and

maturities Real estate assets having combined depreciated cost of $22144109 served as

collateral for the outstanding mortgage debt at December 31 2008
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SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Special Cash Distributions Declared in June 2008 and Paid in August 2008 On June 24

2008 Roberts Realtys board of directors declared special distribution of $5005586 or $0.66

per share/unit to the shareholders and unitholders of record on July 10 2008 On August

2008 Roberts Realty paid total of $3824446 to shareholders and $1181140 to unitholders

Special Cash and Stock Distributions Declared in December 2008 and Paid in January

2009 On December 18 2008 Roberts Realtys board of directors declared special distribution

of $9058000 or $1.56 per share to shareholders of record at the close of business on December

29 2008 The distribution was paid in combination of 20% in cash or $0.31 per share and

80% in common stock equal to $1.25 per share On January 29 2009 Roberts Realty issued

3754732 shares to shareholders in the stock portion of the distribution described above and paid

total of $1811819 in cash to shareholders in the cash portion of the distribution Unitholders

received the same cash distribution of $0.31 per share as shareholders which totaled $551090

As result of this special stock distribution to shareholders the conversion ratio for the exchange

of units for shares was adjusted effective January 29 2009 but retroactive to the December 29

2008 record date from one share for each unit exchanged to 1.647 shares for each unit

exchanged

Exchanges of Units for Shares During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 total of

11895 and 10005 units respectively were exchanged for an equal number of shares In

accordance with the revised conversion ratio explained in the previous paragraph total of

319080 units were exchanged for 525527 shares on December 30 and 31 2008 These

exchanges occurred after the December 29 2008 record date for the special distribution Of

those 525527 shares 319080 shares were issued on the exchange date and the remainder were

issued on January 29 2009 concurrently with the special distribution Each redemption was

reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements at the closing price of Roberts

Realtys stock price on the date of conversion

Restricted Stock The Roberts Realty Investors Inc Restricted Stock Plan the Plan provides

for the grant of stock awards to employees directors consultants and advisors including

employees of Roberts Properties Inc and Roberts Properties Construction Inc which are non-

owned affiliates of Roberts Realty Under the Plan as originally approved Roberts Realty was

authorized to grant up to 400000 shares of restricted stock subject to anti-dilution provisions of

the Plan The maximum number of shares of restricted stock that may be granted to any one

individual during the term of the Plan may not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of shares of

restricted stock that may be issued under the Plan The Plan is administered by the compensation

committee of Roberts Realtys board of directors

In 2006 Roberts Realty adopted the provisions of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 123-Revised 2004 Share-Based Payment SFAS 123R which requires that

share-based compensation cost be recognized in the statement of operations and measured at the

grant-date fair value of the share-based award Roberts Realty accounts for the Plan in

accordance SFAS 23R Under the fair value provisions of the statement stock-based

compensation cost is measured at the date of grant based on the fair value of the award and is

recognized as an expense on straight-line basis over the requisite service period which is the

vesting period Compensation expense related to restricted stock grants was $21001 and $73818

for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The following table shows the restricted stock activity for the years ending December 31 2008

and 2007 the amounts in the Weighted Grant Date Fair Value Per Share column have not been

adjusted for the distributions paid in August 2008 and January 2009

Number of Unvested Weighted Grant

Shares of Date Fair Value

Restricted Stock Per Share

Balance December 31 2006 1350 $7.41

Granted 25000 7.69

Forfeited

Vested 6964 7.62

Balance December 31 2007 19386 $7.70

Granted 2000 6.50

Forfeited 19848 7.67

Vested 1538 6.50

Balance December 31 2008

The total fair value of nonvested stock awards that vested during 2008 was $10000 and that

vested in 2007 was $53063

Quarterly Dividends Roberts Realty has not paid regular quarterly dividends since the third

quarter of 2001

Treasury Stock In September 1998 Roberts Realtys board authorized stock repurchase plan

of up to 400000 shares of our outstanding common stock Roberts Realty repurchased 362588
shares for $2764000 prior to 2002 On December 2008 Roberts Realtys board of directors

amended the stock repurchase program to authorize the company to repurchase up to 300000
shares of its outstanding common stock including the remaining 37412 shares under the plan

before that amendment The plan does not have an expiration date Roberts Realty repurchased

8400 shares of its common stock for $15886 during the year ended December 31 2008

Earnings Per Share

In calculating earnings per share the effects of the issuance of additional shares of common stock

in the special stock distribution described above and the concurrent issuance of additional

shares to holders of units who exchanged them for shares in 2008 after the December 29 2008

record date of the special stock distribution have been retroactively reflected in each of the

historical periods presented as if those shares were issued and outstanding at the beginning of the

earliest period presented Accordingly all activities before the December 24 2008 ex-dividend

date of the special distribution including share issuances repurchases and forfeitures have been

adjusted to reflect the effective increase in the number of shares
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The following table reconciles our shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 according to the official records of our transfer agent to our shares

outstanding at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 as shown in the consolidated financial

statements

December 31

2008 2007

Shares issued and outstanding according to transfer agent 6125590 5812463

Shares issued January 29 2009 pursuant to the special

distribution declared on December 18 2008 to

shareholders of record on December 29 2008 3754732 3754732

Shares issued January 29 2009 to unitholders who

exchanged units for shares in 2008 after the

December 29 2008 record date 206447 206447

Shares outstanding at December 31 2008 as shown in the

consolidated financial statements 10.086769 9773.642

The reconciliations of income available to common shareholders and weighted average shares

and units used in Roberts Realtys basic and diluted earnings per share computations are detailed

below

2008 2007

Loss from continuing operations basic $448953 $3264844

Minority interest of unitholders in the operating 1.381439 1009071

partnership in income attributable to continuing operations

Loss from continuing operations diluted $5.870.970 $4.273.915

Income loss from discontinued operationsbasic 22110875 146631

Minority interest of unitholders in the operating

partnership in income attributable to discontinued operations 6.803569 45319

Income loss from discontinued operations diluted $28.914.444 $191.950

Net income loss diluted $23.043474 $4.465.865

Weighted average shares basic 9763210 9765617

Dilutive securities weighted average units 2731276 2737445

Weighted average shares diluted 12.494486 12.503.062

SEGMENT REPORTING

SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information

established standards for reporting financial and descriptive information about operating

segments in annual financial statements Operating segments are defined as components of an

enterprise about which separate
financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by

the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing

performance Roberts Realtys chief operating decision maker is Mr Roberts its chief executive

officer
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Roberts Realty develops constructs owns and manages multifamily apartment communities
neighborhood retail centers and one office building all of which are currently located in Georgia
As result Roberts Realty has four reportable operating segments

the multifamily segment which consists of operating apartment communities
the retail/office segment which consists of operating retail centers and an office building

the land segment which consists of various tracts of land that are either under

development and construction or held for investment and

the corporate segment which consists primarily of operating cash and cash equivalents

plus miscellaneous other assets

The following table summarizes the operating results of Roberts Realtys reportable segments for

the twelve months ended December 31 2008 The multifamily segment is composed of the

Addison Place apartment community which was sold on June 24 2008 and is reflected as

discontinued operations The retail/office segment is composed of the Addison Place Shops
Grand Pavilion retail center Bassett retail center Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail center
and the Northridge office building The land segment is composed of five tracts of

undeveloped land totaling 104 acres in various phases of development one tract of

undeveloped land totaling 44 acres that is held for investment The
corporate segment consists

primarily of cash and cash equivalents miscellaneous other assets and general and administrative

expenses

Twelve Months Ended December 31 2008

Dollars in Thousands

Retail

Multifamily Office Land Corporate Total

Operating revenues continuing 2234271 12675 2246946
Other operating income 346296 6.272 352568

Total operating revenues from

consolidated entities 2580567 12.675 6.272 2.5995 14

Operating expenses continuing 3790721 342305 1684616 5817642
Depreciation and amortization 1292.617 14973 1.307590
expense

Total operating expenses from

consolidated entities 5083338 342.305 1699589 7125.232

Other expense income 1430.308 174.841 259.897 1345252

Loss from continuing operations

before minority interest 3.933.079 504.471 1.433.420 5.870970

Minority interest of unitholders

in the operating partnership 925453 118702 337.284 1381.439

Loss from continuing operations 3007626 385769 1096136 4489531

Income from discontinued

operations net of minority interest

of unitholders in the operating

partnership Note 22110.875 22.110.875

Net income loss 22.1 lQ475 3.007.626 385.76 $1J96.136 17.621344

Total assets at December 31 2008 34.953.245 6L400.184 $17.004.134 SU3.3575

F-i



The following table summarizes the operating results of Roberts Realtys reportable segments for

the twelve months ended December 31 2007 The multifamily segment is composed of the

Addison Place apartment community which was sold on June 24 2008 and is reflected as

discontinued operations The retail/office segment is composed of the Addison Place Shops
Grand Pavilion retail center Bassett retail center Spectrum at the Mall of Georgia retail center

and the Northridge office building The land segment is composed of five tracts of

undeveloped land totaling 104 acres in various phases of development and tract of

undeveloped land totaling 44 acres that is held for investment The corporate segment consists

primarily of cash and cash equivalents miscellaneous other assets and general and administrative

expenses

Twelve Months Ended December 31 2007

Dollars in Thousands

Retaill

Multifamily Office Land Corporate Total

Operatingrevenuescontinuing 2074672 13488 2088160
Other operating income

_____ 341903 24474 3667i

Total operating revenues from

consolidated entities 2416575 13488 24.474 2454537

Operating expenses continuing 1107571 260376 1563075 2931.022
Depreciation and amortization 1.322805 ________ 20.205 _4i10
expense

Total operating expenses from

consolidated entities 2430376 260376 1583280 4274032

Other expense income 1.615.176 963645 124.401 2454420

Loss from continuing operations

before minority interest 1.628.977 1210.533 1434405 4.273915

Minority interest of unitholders

in the operating partnership 384601 285.807 338.663 1009071

Loss from continuing operations 1244376 924726 1095742 3264844

Loss from discontinued

operations net of minority interest

of unitholders in the operating
146 631

partnership Note 146.63

Net loss S146.63j SJ2447 924.726 $1.095742

Total assets at December 31 2007 $30.482.502 37.635.853 $5557295 775.342 $j2L450 992
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Mr Charles Roberts and His Affiliates

Roberts Realty enters into contractual commitments in the normal course of business with

Roberts Properties Inc Roberts Properties and Roberts Properties Construction Inc

Roberts Construction together referred to as the Roberts Companies Mr Charles

Roberts the President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Roberts Realty

owns all of the outstanding stock of the Roberts Companies The contracts between Roberts

Realty and the Roberts Companies relate to the development and construction of real estate

assets and from time to time the acquisition of real estate The board of directors has adopted

policy that all conflicting interest transactions must be authorized by majority of the

disinterested directors but only if there are at least two directors who are disinterested with

respect to the matter at issue Under the charter for the audit committee of Roberts Realtys board

of directors related party transactions are also subject to appropriate review and oversight by the

audit committee In entering into the transactions described below Roberts Realty complied with

those policies On July 24 2007 the board of directors adopted revised charters for the audit

committee the compensation committee and the nominating and governance committee

Design and Development Agreements with Roberts Properties Roberts Realty pays Roberts

Properties fees for various development services that include market studies business plans

exterior design finish selection interior design and construction administration During 2005

and 2006 Roberts Realty entered into the following design and development agreements with

Roberts Properties

on April 14 2005 for the Peachtree Parkway property

on April 14 2005 for the North Springs property formerly referred to as the

Peachtree Dunwoody property

on August 2005 for the Sawmill Village property and

on February 21 2006 for the Highway 20 property

The financial terms of the agreements are generally $5000 per residential unit payable over the

development period The following table summarizes the four design and development

agreements listed above

Total

Amount

Total Incurred Remaining
Contract through Contractual

Amount 12/31/08 Commitment

North Springs $1780000 $1780000
Peachtree Parkway 1460000 1460000
Sawmill Village 770000 462000 308000

Highway 20 1050000 100000 950000

$5.060000 $3.802.000 $l258.000

Construction Contracts with Roberts Construction From time to time Roberts Realty enters

into construction contracts with Roberts Construction Roberts Construction began construction

on the 39205 square foot Addison Place Shops retail center before Roberts Realty purchased the

property and in 2001 Roberts Realty entered into cost plus 5% contract with Roberts

Construction to finish the construction During 2007 Roberts Realty entered into cost plus 5%
contract with Roberts Construction for the construction of Building at the Addison Place

Shops which is now complete
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Roberts Realty has entered into the following cost plus 10% construction contracts with Roberts

Construction See Note Commitments and Contingencies for more information These

contracts have not been completed as of December 31 2008

on March 28 2003 for the Northridge property

on April 14 2005 for the Peachtree Parkway property as amended December 2006

on April 14 2005 for the North Springs property formerly referred to as the Peachtree

Dunwoody property

on August 2005 for the Sawmill Village property and

on February 21 2006 for the Highway 20 property

Land Acquisitions Roberts Realty did not acquire land from related parties during the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Other Fees Roberts Realty paid Roberts Construction for labor and materials to perform capital

improvements for our properties in the amounts of $246767 and $26000 in 2008 and 2007

respectively During 2008 and 2007 affiliates of Mr Roberts received miscellaneous fees and

cost reimbursements of $201578 and $38000 respectively Roberts Realty owed Roberts

Properties $4262 and $116000 at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

under reimbursement agreement and this amount is included in Due to Affiliates

Office Leases On March 27 2006 Roberts Realty entered into lease agreement with each of

the Roberts Companies These leases supersede the month-to-month leases that were previously

in effect and the new terms were retroactively effective as of January 2006

The terms of the lease with Roberts Properties include total of 5336 rentable square feet for

one-year term at rate of $20.00 per rentable square foot Roberts Properties paid Roberts Realty

$115613 and $101000 in 2008 and 2007 respectively under this lease and previous lease

extensions On January 30 2009 Roberts Properties exercised its option to renew through

December 31 2009 at rate of $20.00 per rentable square foot Roberts Properties had three one-

year options to renew its lease for all or part of the premises upon three months prior written

notice with the rate to be negotiated at market rents but in no event less than the base rent at the

end of the term

The terms of the lease to Roberts Construction include total of 1854 rentable square feet for

one-year term at rate of $20.00 per rentable square foot Roberts Construction paid Roberts

Realty $37080 and $35000 in 2008 and 2007 respectively under this lease and previous lease

extensions On January 30 2009 Roberts Construction exercised its option to renew through

December 31 2009 at rate of $20.00 per rentable square foot Roberts Construction had three

one-year options to renew its lease for all or part of the premises upon three months prior written

notice with the rate to be negotiated at market rents but in no event less than the base rent at the

end of the term

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Roberts Realty has five projects in various phases of development and has entered into various

contracts for the development and construction of these projects The contracts with Roberts

Properties and Roberts Construction are described in Note Related Party Transactions The

construction contracts with Roberts Construction require Roberts Realty to pay Roberts

Construction general contractor fee equal to cost plus 10% 5% overhead and 5% profit The

cost of these five new projects has not been determined because the architectural design land

planning floor plans and other details have not been finalized
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In addition to the construction contracts with Roberts Construction Roberts Realty entered into

architectural and engineering contracts with third parties for the Northridge Sawmill Village and

Peachtree Parkway projects At December 31 2008 outstanding commitments on these contracts

totaled $302544

At December 31 2008 Roberts Realty had one $500000 letter of credit outstanding The letter

of credit is required by the lender for Roberts Realtys Spectrum retail center and is held in

reserve fund by the lender for the payment of leasing costs Roberts Realty assumed this

obligation under the loan documents when it acquired the Spectrum retail center in October 2005

The letter of credit expires on October 26 2009

Roberts Realty and the operating partnership are subject to various legal proceedings and claims

that arise in the ordinary course of business While the resolution of these matters cannot be

predicted with certainty management believes that the final outcome of these matters will not

have material adverse effect on Roberts Realtys financial position or results of operations

As result of the mergers of various limited partnerships into the operating partnership the

former partners of these limited partnerships received units Holders of units have the right to

require the operating partnership to redeem their units for shares subject to certain conditions

Upon submittal of units for redemption the operating partnership will have the option either

to pay cash for those units at their fair market value which will be based upon the then current

trading price of the shares or to acquire those units in exchange for shares on 1.647-for-one

basis Roberts Realty has adopted policy that it will issue shares in exchange for all future

units submitted There were 1458630 units outstanding at December 31 2008 that could be

exchanged for shares subject to the conditions described above

Under Roberts Realtys bylaws it is obligated to indemnify its officers and directors for certain

events or occurrences arising as result of its officers and directors serving in these capacities

The maximum potential amount of future payments Roberts Realty could be required to make

under this indemnification arrangement is unlimited Roberts Realty currently has directors and

officers liability insurance policy that may limit its exposure and enable it to recover portion of

any future amounts paid Because of the insurance policy coverage Roberts Realty believes the

estimated fair value of this indemnification arrangement is minimal and Roberts Realty has

recorded no liabilities for this indemnification arrangement as of December 31 2008

Under various federal state and local environmental laws and regulations Roberts Realty may
be required to investigate and clean up the effects of hazardous or toxic substances at its

properties including properties that have previously been sold The preliminary environmental

assessments of Roberts Realtys operating properties development projects and land held for

investment have not revealed any environmental liability that Roberts Realty believes would have

material adverse effect on its business assets or results of operations nor is Roberts Realty

aware of any liability of that type
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10 SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

Year Ended December 31 2008

Total operating revenues $628234 $663301 $653434 $654545

Loss income from operations 442690 379573 1692344 2011111

Loss from continuing operations

net of minority interest 679871 586979 1468267 1754414

Income loss from discontinued operations 247971 21846011 34 16859

Net income loss 431900 21259032 1468233 1737555

Per share diluted

Loss from continuing operations $0.07 $0.06 $0.15 $0.19

Income from discontinued operations 0.03 2.28

Net loss income $0.04 $222 $0.15 S0.19

Year Ended December 31 2007

Total operating revenues $586283 $638053 $620427 $609774

Loss from operations 485361 445520 390375 498239
Loss from continuing operations

net of minority interest 966273 951830 606244 740497

Income loss from discontinued operations 7373 108223 71081 25300

Net loss 958900 1060053 677325 715197

Per share diluted

Loss from continuing operations $0.10 $0.10 $0.06 $0.08

Loss from discontinued operations 0.01 0.01

Net loss $0110 $0111 $0.07 $0108

Amounts have been restated as appropriate to give effect to discontinued operations

11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Amendment to Stock Repurchase Plan On January 13 2009 Roberts Realtys board of

directors amended its stock repurchase plan to authorize the company to repurchase up to 600000

shares of outstanding common stock effective on that date

Amendment to Restricted Stock Plan On January 27 2009 Roberts Realtys board of

directors amended the Roberts Realty Investors Inc Restricted Stock Plan the Plan to take

into account Roberts Realtys stock distribution paid on January 29 2009 Under the Plan as

amended Roberts Realty may grant up to 654000 shares of restricted common stock under the

Plan subject to the anti-dilution provisions of the Plan

Loan Commitment to Refinance Loan Secured by Highway 20 Land On March 19 2009

Roberts Realty entered into loan commitment letter from local bank to provide $3.5 million

loan to refinance its Highway 20 land subject to customary closing conditions At closing

Roberts Realty would reduce the debt secured by the land by $577000 The loan would mature

on or about October 31 2010
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BenA.Spalding TRANSFER AGENT
Private Investor American Stock Transfer Trust Company

Shareholder Services

Wm Jarell Jones 10150 Mallard Creek Drive Suite 307

Attorney
and

Certified
Public Accountant Charlotte North Carolina 28262

Telephone 718 921-8522

John Davis

Private Investor

SECURITIES COUNSEL
Nelson Mullins Riley Scarborough LLP

CORPORATE Atlantic Station

EAD QUARTERS 201 17th Street NW Suite 1700

Roberts Realty Investors Inc Atlanta Georgia 30363

450 Northridge Parkway

Suite 302

Atlanta Georgia 30350 GENERAL COUNSEL
Telephone 770 394-6000 Holt Ney Zatcoff Wasserman LLP

100 Galleria Parkway Suite 600

Atlanta Georgia 30339

ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting

of Shareholders will be held INDEPENDENT
on Tuesday September 29 2009 AUDITORS
at 1000 a.m at Reznick Group P.C

Crowne Plaza Ravinia 2002 Summit Boulevard

4355 Ashford Dunwoody Road Suite 1000

Atlanta Georgia 30346 Atlanta Georgia 30319



ROBERTS REALTY INVESTORS INC

450 NORTH RIDGE PARKWAY
SUITE 302

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30350

770 3946OOO


